Public Document Pack

Cheshire E;s?l

Council%

Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee
Agenda

Date: Thursday, 13th June, 2013
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road,

Sandbach CW11 1HZ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press.
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report.

PART 1 - MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT
1. Apologies for Absence

2. Minutes of Previous meeting (Pages 1-4)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 9 May 2013

3. Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and
non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

4. Declaration of Party Whip

To provide an opportunity for Members to declare the existence of a party whip in relation to
any item on the agenda

For any apologies or requests for further information, or to give notice of a question to be
asked by a member of the public

Contact: James Morley

Tel: 01270 686468

E-Mail: james.morley@cheshireeast.gov.uk



Public Speaking Time/Open Session

A total period of 15 minutes is allocated for members of the public to make a statement(s) on
any matter that falls within the remit of the Committee.

Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes, but the Chairman will decide
how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned, where there are a
number of speakers.

Note: in order for officers to undertake any background research, it would be helpful if

members of the public notified the Scrutiny officer listed at the foot of the agenda at least one
working day before the meeting with brief details of the matter to be covered.

North West Ambulance Service Quality Accounts 2012/13 (Pages 5 - 44)

To examine the Quality Accounts for 2012/13 of the North West Ambulance Service and
provide comment.

Ageing Well Programme Annual Report (Pages 45 - 54)

To consider the Ageing Well Programme Annual Report and provide comment and
recommendations to the Health and Wellbeing Board.

The Ageing Well Programme Board presents its first annual report of the 5 year programme
aimed at making Cheshire East a good place to grow old. The report summarises the work to
date, the achievements in 2012/13, and the plans for 2013/14.

Work Programme (Pages 55 - 60)

To review the current Work Programme (attached).

Health and Wellbeing Board Update

To receive an update on the Health and Wellbeing Board



Page 1 Agenda ltem 2

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee
held on Thursday, 9th May, 2013 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields,
Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ
PRESENT

Councillor G Baxendale (Chairman)
Councillor A Harewood (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors R Domleo, |Faseyi, D Hough, W Livesley, A Moran,
M J Weatherill and P Hoyland (as Substitute for Councillor J Saunders)

Apologies
Councillor J Saunders
ALSO PRESENT
Councillor J Clowes — Portfolio Holder for Health and Adult Social Care
Councillor S Gardiner — Cabinet Support for Health and Adult Social Care
Fiona Field — South Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group
Julie Smith — Mid Cheshire Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Kath Senior — East Cheshire NHS Trust
OFFICERS PRESENT
James Morley — Scrutiny Officer
121 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting on 4 April 2013 were agreed as a correct record.
122 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest
123 DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP
There were no declarations of party whip
124 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

There were no members of the public wishing to address the Committee

125 MID CHESHIRE HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - QUALITY
ACCOUNTS 2012/13



Page 2

The Group considered the draft quality accounts of Mid Cheshire NHS Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust for 2012/13. Julie Smith, Director of Nursing and Quality at
Mid Cheshire presented the quality accounts and highlighted some of the key
achievements and challenges that Mid Cheshire had faced during 2012/13.

The Committee asked questions and the following points were made:

One of the main challenges for Mid Cheshire had been the inability
to recruit enough nurses. There had been 80 vacancies at one time
but a new robust recruitment and retention programme had helped
to reduce the vacancies to seven. Nurses from oversees had to be
recruited due to the low availability of nurses in the local area.

The Trust hadn’t met the targets set for reducing smoking during
pregnancy or breast feeding but had been working with Public
Health to decrease smoking rates and increase the number of new
mothers breast feeding.

The Trust had reviewed the Francis Report into Mid Staffordshire
Hospitals failings and used some of the recommendations to help
focus its own efforts to make improvements.

The Committee praised the quality of the accounts from an In
Patient perspective but was concerned that no mention of Out
Patient statistics such as waiting times and care quality had been
included in the accounts.

The number of people who had not received an operation within 28
dates of an original date being cancelled was 10.83% above target
and equated to 70 patients.

The biggest contributor to incidents in hospital was falls and there
were a variety of reasons for why patients fell. Julie Smith assured
the Committee that this was not caused by low care quality due to
under staffing of nurses. The Committee wanted to see statistics for
falls and an action plan to tackle them included in the accounts.
There was an issue with the delay between patients being
discharged and receiving their prescriptions. Investment in ward
based Pharmacies had helped to reduce the issue but more could
be done. One contributing factor was patients wanting to leave the
hospital as soon as possible after being discharged but delays also
came from doctors not writing prescriptions in a timely manner.

The Committee suggested it would be useful to include actual
number of patients in statistics and not just percentages to provide
greater context about the number of people affected.

Julie Smith anticipated that the biggest challenges for the Trust in
2013/14 would be: dealing with staff shortages; reducing mortality
rates; and reducing smoking during pregnancy and increasing
breast feeding.

RESOLVED:

(a) That Julie Smith be thanked for attending the meeting.

(b) That the Chairman of the Committee write a letter to the Mid

Cheshire Hospital NHS Foundation Trust to provide feedback on its



Page 3

Quality Accounts for 2012/13 to be included in the final version of
the Quality Accounts.

126 EAST CHESHIRE NHS TRUST - QUALITY ACCOUNTS 2012/13

The Committee considered the draft Quality Accounts for East Cheshire NHS
Trust for 2012/13. Kath Senior, Director of Nursing, Performance & Quality at
East Cheshire presented an overview of the accounts by highlighting some of the
quality improvements during 2012/13 and identifying the priorities for quality
improvement in 2013/14.

The Committee asked questions and the following points were made:

The Trust wanted to assist in intervention and prevention to avoid
people having to go to hospital which would help to reduce the
demand on services.

Staff were encouraged to report near misses as well as incidents so
that the Trust could learn from them.

Falls in hospital had been reduced however it had not been reduced
as far as the Trust had targeted at the beginning of 2012/13.

Fewer patients were scheduled to have operations during
December because people did not want to have them before
Christmas and more staff took annual leave during December. That
had an effect on the number of operations cancelled which made
the figures appear favourable.

The Trust needed to improve the way patients were scheduled for
operations to decrease the number of cancelled operations.
Availability of Out Patient services after 5:00pm should be extended
to increase convenience for patients who preferred evening
appointments.

The Committee was pleased with the aspirations for improvements
to dementia diagnosis and care. It was considered necessary to be
aware of a patient’s other conditions or health issues in addition to
their dementia to ensure they were not overlooked.

The Trust had created supervisory posts in the nursing teams to
coordinate nurses and take responsibility for performance and care
quality.

RESOLVED:

(a) That Kath Senior be thanked for attending the meeting.

(b) That the Chairman of the Committee write a letter to the East

Cheshire NHS Trust to provide feedback on its Quality Accounts for
2012/13 to be included in the final version of the Quality Accounts.

127 WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee considered its work programme. There were no alterations to the
work programme suggested.

RESOLVED - That the work programme be noted



Page 4

128 HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD UPDATE

The Councillor J Clowes updated the Committee on the Health and Wellbeing
Board. The Board had held the first public meeting on 30 April 2013. Councillor J
Clowes had been appointed as the Chairman of the Board and Dr Paul Bowen
was appointed Vice Chairman. The Board had also considered items including:
Presentation from North West Ambulance Service,

Presentation on the Cheshire East Local Plan,

Report on Dementia, and

Report on NHS Health Checks.

RESOLVED - That the update be noted.

The meeting commenced at 10.05 am and concluded at 12.27 pm

Councillor G Baxendale (Chairman)



Page 5 Agenda Item 6

North West Ambulance Service m

NHS Trust

Delivering the right care, at the right time, in the right place

NORTH WEST AMBULANCE SERVICE NHS TRUST
QUALITY ACCOUNT

2012/2013

| Page 1 of 39



Page 6

1 Chief Executive’s Statement

Welcome to the Quality Account for the North West Ambulance Service NHS Trust, which describes
how we have delivered and improved quality during 2012/13, and sets out some of our quality
priorities for the year ahead.

2012/13 has been a very successful year for this Trust as we have moved through the final stages of
our application for Foundation Trust status. With the recent national attention on the issue of
quality, exemplified by the impact of the Francis Review and the Winterbourne Gunner report, it is
no surprise that quality has become a yet more important aspect of the FT application regime.

The Trust has been subject to series of scrutiny stages against the Monitor Quality Governance
Framework, including self-assessment, independent external validation and then formal review by
the then Strategic Health Authority and Monitor itself. Although the final outcome is still awaited at
the time of writing, | am confident that this Trust has for some considerable time shown its
commitment to identifying and improving the quality of service that we offer to the population of the
North West.

| would like to draw your attention to some particular headlines form the year:

e Successful implementation of 95% of our planned actions arising from the Quality Strategy
That we agreed in February 2012

e Success in meeting all national operational response time targets for the year

e Continued expansion of and improvement in performance against our Clinical Performance
Indicators

e More evidence of the enormous beneficial impact of our clinical leadership structure with its
tiers of Advanced and Senior Paramedics dedicated to quality improvement

e Another extremely positive inspection report from the Care Quality Commission following its
visit in February 2013

e A well-received and constructive programme of Station Quality Visits in which senior
corporate managers visited our 109 stations

e An extensive and effective programme of engagement with patients to ascertain their levels
of satisfaction with our services, in both the Emergency and Patient Transport Services, all
showing very high levels of satisfaction

e Establishment of our new Council of Governors

In conclusion | would like to extend my thanks to all NWAS staff for their continuing commitment to
their patients and the quality of care that they provide. | hope that you find this Quality Account
informative. Please get in touch if you have any questions.

Bob Williams
Acting Chief Executive

| Page 2 of 39



Page 7

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE QUALITY ACCOUNT

The directors are required under the Health Act 2009, National Health Service (Quality Accounts)
Regulations 2010 and National Health Service (Quality Account) Amendment Regulation 2011 to
prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year. The Department of Health has issued guidance
on the form and content of annual Quality Accounts (which incorporate the above legal
requirements).

In preparing the Quality Account, directors are required to take steps to satisfy themselves that:

¢ the Quality Account presents a balanced picture of the Trust’s performance over the
period covered;

¢ the performance information reported in the Quality Account is reliable and accurate;

¢ there are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures of
performance included in the Quality Account, and these controls are subject to review to
confirm that they are working effectively in practice;

¢ the data underpinning the measures of performance reported in the Quality Account is
robust and reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and prescribed
definitions, is subject to appropriate scrutiny and review; and the Quality Account has
been prepared in accordance with Department of Health guidance.

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the
above requirements in preparing the Quality Account.

By order of the Board

.............................. DY =TT Ol o T-1 12 0 1 T-11]

.............................. Date.ieiieiieeiiiieeeeeeeeeteeeeeeeeeeiieeeeeeeeeennnn . Chief Executive

| Page 3 of 39



Page 8

Table Of Contents
1 Chief Executive’s Statement ........ccuueeiiiiiiiiiiiiinuiiiiiiiiniinrsnnnrrssssssssssesssssssssses 2
2 Looking back to 2012/2013 - Review of Quality Performance.........ccceceeeeeeeieierereeeeenennns 5
2.1 Progress with last year’s priorities for improvement ......cccccccvvevciieeiincieee e, 5
2.1.1  Safer Care Closer to HOme (Falls).......cccuieieiieiiiieciee e 5
2.1.2  Major Trauma SYSTeIMS .. i s e s s e s 5
2.1.3  ENA Of LIf@ CAre wueeeeeiee ittt ettt e e e e st rae e e e e e e e e e anraaeeeaaaeas 6
2.1.4  Patient experience relating to learning disability and dementia...........cccceuuee. 6
2.2 Managing Quality Better in 2012/13 ......ccceiiieiieeieeeecee e 8
2.3 National Reporting REqQUIrEMENLS .......evviiiiiiiiiriiee e 9
2.3.1 Category A (Red 1 & 2) RESPONSE tIMES...ccccuieeriieeiiieiiieeecreeeniaeeeeeeeeieeesvee e 9
P2 T A O (VT | 11 AV @ 10 ol T3 o 1= T T PRI 10
24 Indicators of Quality — Patient Safety .......ccccviiiiiiiiii 13
2.4.1  Clinical Safety Indicator REPOIrtiNG ......ccccuvieeiiiiiiiie e 13
2.4.2  SafegUArdiNG SEIVICES.....uiiiiiiiiieeeiciee sttt ettt e e s e e e e e e s saae e e s e areeeeennnaeeees 13
2.4.3  Clinical INCident REPOITING .....vviieiiiiieee ettt e e e aee e e e sraeee s 18
2.4.4 Infection Prevention and CoNntrol.........ccceeeiriiiiiiiiiiiee e 20
2.5 CliNICal EffECtiVENESS ...ttt e e e e e e e e e eaarrae e e e e e 22
2.5.1 ACQI: Clinical Quality OUtCOMES ......uuiiiiieeeeecceiciree e e rrrre e 22
2.5.2  Clinical Performance INdicators (CPIS) .......cciiuievurreeiieiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeesiinreeeeee e 23
2.6 Indicators of Quality — Patient EXPerience.......cccouveeeeiiieeeecciiee e 24
2.6.1  ACCESS truuiiie ittt ettt e e e e et e et e e e e e e et e et b e e e et et e aatraaeeeeeteeeraaaaeeeaaranes 24
2.6.2  Patient and Public ENGagement .........c.cueeeeeeiiiiiiiiiieeee et 26
2.6.3  Complaints, PALS and Compliments .......cccoovriiciiiiiieeei e, 27
3 Looking Forward to Improving Care ........cccceiieeiiieeiiiieiieieninieniinenieieesesisesessnssessnsssses 33
3.1 Safer Care Closer to HOmMeE (Falls)...cccovvrveiiiiiiiiiiiieeieicc et 33
3.2 Management of patient waiting times (long Waits)........ccccecvvveeiieiiieeecccieee e, 33
3.3 Isolated Lower Limb Fracture.......ccccceoe it 33
3.4 Improving care for patients with Mental Health issues..........cccccvvvveeieiiiecnnnneee. 33
4 Formal Statements on QUaAlity ......cccoiieeiiimiiiiiiiicrrrcree e e ree e senenesensaens 34
4.1 REVIEW OF SEIVICES ..uuviviiieieeieiicteeee et e e e e e e et ar e e e e e e e e e nereaaes 34
4.2 Participation in clinical QUAILS .......eeeeiiieiiiiiiieec e, 35
4.3 Participation in clinical reSearch .........coocccviveeeii e, 35
4.4 Use of the CQUIN payment framework ........cccooeeeeiciinieeieei e, 35
4.5 Statement on relevance of Data Quality and your actions to improve it............ 36
4.5.1  NHS Number and General Medical Practice Code Validity.......cccccceeeeeeeeinnnneen. 36
4.5.2 Information Governance Toolkit attainment levels..........cccccoveeeiriiieiiiiiieenns 36
4.5.3  Clinical COAiNG EITOr Fate...ccccuuiieeeeee ettt eerrrre e e e e e e e aanrees 36
5 Statements from commissioning PCT, LINK and OSC........ccccceereenerrenrrennerennceenneenennens 37
5.1 Overview and Scrutiny CoOMMITEEES. ... .uvevieeeeiieiciireeeee e 37
5.2 Local Improvement NEtWOIKS .......ceeiiiiiiiiciiiieiei e 37
5.3 NHS Blackpool - NWAS Commissioners statement........cccceeeeeeeecvvveeeeeeeeeeiennnneen. 37

| Page 4 of 39



Page 9

2 Looking back to 2012/2013 - Review of Quality Performance

This section of the Quality Account describes what we have done during 2012/13 to improve the
quality of our services. It includes:

e How we delivered the four priorities for improvement identified in last year’s Quality
Account

e How we have improved the way that we measure and manage quality

e Our performance against the new national Ambulance Quality Indicators

e The progress made in improving patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience.

2.1 Progress with last year’s priorities for improvement

In the 2011/12 Quality Account we identified four areas for improvement. This section sets out how
we have done:

2.1.1 Safer Care Closer to Home (Falls)

The Trust is committed to the development of innovative ways of ensuring that patients get the care
that meets their specific needs. This may not | some cases mean a trip to the A&E department. We
have been working on a scheme to ensure that where it can be shown that it is safe for patients they
are kept at home with the necessary care and support. The key mechanism for this is the Paramedic
Pathfinder initiative which has received national recognition. This gives our healthcare professional
the scope of practice and training to be able to make valid clinical decisions about the care of their
patients, while ensuring patient safety and recognising patient choice.

In 2011/12 we have established the Pathfinder Implementation Team, Pathfinder Board and Safe
Care Closer to Home Board during the past year. These teams and the governance provided by the
steering and scrutinising groups, have established relationships with providers, commissioners, and
other key stakeholders across every CCG area. We have finalised development and implementation
of the Electronic Referral and Information Sharing System (ERISS) which will enable sharing of
information and timely referral into community based falls, diabetes, and other ambulatory care
sensitive conditions. Over 100 referral or community care plan schemes have been launched since
June 2012.

The mandatory implementation of Pathfinder and associated route into Self-care Pathways in April
2012, together with improvements within the telephone triage function has increased the level of
non-conveyance to ED from 18.6% to a peak of 24% in the last quarter of the year. This represents
additional 45,000-50,000 patients who have received safe care closer to home.

There is still more to be done to make sure that the care offered to this group of patients is as good
as it can be. Our plans for the year ahead are described in Section 3.3.

2.1.2 Major Trauma systems

Under this national initiative, new arrangements have been put in place for the management of
patients with major trauma, under which they are taken to a one of a limited number of Major
Trauma Centres rather than the closest A&E department. There is clear clinical evidence that this will
benefit patients in terms of survival and in optimising recovery. The Major Trauma System has been

| Page 5 of 39



Page 10

successfully implemented across the North West and early indications around survival and recovery
are very encouraging. We are continuing to work closely with the major trauma networks to ensure
patients are taken to the right place at the right time to receive the right care definitive care.

To help frontline staff determine the appropriate place to take patients a Major trauma pathfinder
tools for adult and children has been developed by the medical directorate have been rolled-out
across the Trust. The Trauma Cell has been established at Broughton EOC to provide proactive co-
ordination and senior clinical support. The Trauma Cell is staffed by Advanced Paramedics and
operates on a 24/7 basis.

We have also introduced new equipment, dressings and drugs to effectively manage major trauma
until the patient is safely transported to a Major Trauma Centre or Trauma Unit.

Together with the governance team we will be routinely auditing and measuring major trauma
incidents to see how well we are performing and ensuring lessons are shared and learned.

2.1.3 End of Life Care

Utilisation of the rapid discharge pathway for dying patients has increased significantly during
2012/13, with 38 hospital trusts and 10 hospices now using the booking process. Of the 543 transfer
requests that could be identified on the Trust call handling system, over 90% were responded to
within 2 hours, with 87% transferred home within 2 hours from the time of booking. This has been
achieved through close working with the hospitals to develop pathways in partnership and improving
internal call handling procedures.

The Trust has progressed with development of Electronic Referral and Information Sharing System
(ERISS) to provide a more efficient and secure method for partner organisations and health
professionals to notify NWAS of the presence of advance care planning for end of life patients in
primary care. February 2013 saw the soft launch of ERISS, which included the registration and
training of a small number of early adopter sites to use the system. There is now a range of
organisations registered with NWAS to share end of life care planning information, with notifications
received on a daily basis, which will help ambulance clinicians manage patients more effectively in
primary care.

These organisational developments have been underpinned by the development of an end of life
care training package which was incorporated into the Trust Mandatory Training programme for
2012/13. Through close working with end of life care networks, NWAS has also been able to offer its
staff access to bereavement and communications training for end of life care, which has been well
received.

2.1.4 Patient experience relating to learning disability and dementia

The importance of the involvement and feedback from patients and representatives from vulnerable
groups is a key principle of the Trust’s engagement plans. The section below summarises the range
of activities the Trust has undertaken to work with a number of diverse and vulnerable groups across
communities in the North West.

During 2012/2013 developments to improve services in relation to learning disabilities and dementia
have resulted in the Trust establishing a small dementia Task and Finish group which has reviewed
the work underway across the trust with dementia. This work includes specialist e-learning packages
for staff, dementia training review, involvement in national dementia alliance, regional meetings etc.

| Page 6 of 39



Page 11

The Trust is now developing a dementia strategy to continue with this work over 2013. With regards
to Learning disabilities we have also developed a LD action plan which addresses issues of the ability
to flag vulnerable persons addresses where necessary, improvements in data collection and audits of
vulnerable groups which will continue to be undertaken in 2013.

Activities
The Trust adopts a range of community engagement activities to provide patients from vulnerable
groups a voice.

e Attendance at public health events e.g. Dementia Awareness Public Event, Disability
Awareness Day

e Organising with groups targeted and focused engagement specifically to provide us with
feedback on services. A board game especially commissioned for obtaining and providing
information in a fun and interactive way is used in this process.

e Accepting invitations to attend user patient forums with an emergency vehicle and related
operational staff. Provide patients a chance to see inside vehicles and speak with the staff
member. Provide blood pressure checks during this process for further interaction.

e Invite patient groups to see how our control centres (emergency and PTS) functions to
understand how we operate.

Objectives
These initiatives support our strategic community engagement objectives of:
e Receive information on access to services and employment opportunities
e Provide reassurance on feedback being valued
e Develop partnership working
e Provide information on volunteering opportunities
e Foundation Trust opportunities
e Increase awareness on Ambulance initiatives
e Record views on the Trust’s reputation and commitment to equality and diversity
e Convey our public health messages

Progress
Vulnerable groups engaged with during 2012/13 using the patient experience board game include:
1. Richmond Fellowship -Mental Health
2. South Manchester People First - Learning Disability
3. Manchester Young Peoples Parliament- 16 & 17 years age - Autism, Learning Disability,
Downs Syndrome
4. Sefton CVS Ability Group - Learning Disability
5. Lancashire Physical Disability Partnership — Physical Disabilities with Mental Health

Further groups engaged with are:

Voices for Well Being— Dementia Event, Disability Workshop

Sefton CVS Abilities Group —Ambulance visit

Bolton Equality Target Action Group — Equality Delivery System
Disability Awareness Day (Warrington) — Information of Trust services

PwnNPE

Feedback collated from engagement with the above groups will inform service improvements
through the development of a work-plan for 2013/14. In addition to specific concerns and themes
raised by groups, consideration will be given to:

e Patient information requirements
e Meeting gaps in training and understanding for staff in these areas.

| Page 7 of 39



Page 12

e During review, to work with commissioners in providing consideration to learning disability
as one of the questions on the PTS Eligibility Criteria

e Development of pictorial versions of the Patient Transport mobility flowchart and emergency
ambulance journeys and related information (similar to the pictorial handbooks). The
Lancashire Physical Disability Partnership, South Manchester People First (Adult Learning
Disability) and the Sefton Adult Learning Group have agreed to supporting the Trust with this
work.

e Vulnerable Adult Form discussions with Mental Health Trusts to further support Trust
flagging processes in this area

e Mental Health learning packages have been developed for staff

e Development of future Patient Stories in 2013/14 for Trust learning to include learning
disability case studies

e Further Learning Disability and Mental Health user groups identified to engage with and elicit
patient experience in 2013/14.

e Easy read information to be made available to learning disability patients on how to make a
complaint

e Development of an easy read version second Patient Experience Board Game to further
support engagement with vulnerable groups

Outcomes
Some of the outcomes as a result of providing patients with a voice already include:

e Development of two pictorial handbooks, one PTS, one PES, to assist operational staff when
communicating with learning disability and speech impaired patients — A new handbook is
being developed for Community First Responders to use.

e FT membership demonstrates a diverse profile including many from the Learning Disability
and Mental Health patient groups mentioned above

e Mental Health is one of the four medical questions on the PTS Eligibility Criteria

e PTS Patient information leaflets produced— A CD (audio) version is also available

e Discharge Checklist produced and presently being shared with leads from the groups
outlined above

e Production of draft mental health patient experience questions to meet with requirements
on NICE standards. Patient Experience team have piloted the questions with The Richmond
Fellowship Mental Health and Well Being Group in January 2013 for use in 2013/14.

2.2 Managing Quality Better in 2012/13

In our last Quality Account we described how we would be improving the way that we measure and
manage quality. During this year we have implemented the first year of our Quality Strategy. The
implementation plan identified a set of actions in each area of the Trust under the headings of Right
Care, Right Time and Right Place. 95% of these actions were completed by year end. The Quality
Strategy has now been further revised to take account of the changing landscape in which we work,
in particular in the context of the Francis report.

The Board of Directors has a well-established Quality Committee that provides assurance that
standards are being maintained and improved. Three important developments this year have been:
Care Quality Commission inspection

Inspectors from the CQC carried out a series of visits in Greater Manchester in February and March

2013. The inspection concentrated on the emergency services provided by the Trust, focused in the
Greater Manchester area. They visited the new Parkway Emergency Operations Centre in

| Page 8 of 39



Page 13

Manchester, eight ambulance stations and three A&E departments as well as talking to a wide range
of staff, managers and patients to seek their views. The Trust was awarded full compliance against
the five care standards assessed by the review.

These were:
e Care and welfare of people who use services
e Management of medicines
e Supporting workers
e Assessing and monitoring the quality of service provision
e Complaints

The full report is available to view from the CQC website: http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/RX701

The outcome is testament to the hard work and dedication of staff across the whole Trust. The
report highlights the positive feedback provided by staff and patients and the inspectors noted safe
and good care when reviewing protocols and observing practice.

Station Quality Visits

The Trust has 109 stations spread over the whole of the Region. There is therefore inevitably a
continuing challenge in staying in touch with the Trust’s staff. An important development this year
has been to establish a programme of Station Quality Visits in which senior corporate managers have
visited every site to identify any areas of either concern or good practice. The approach taken was
one of active engagement with staff to ask their views on quality of service, and how it can be
proved. The process was extremely productive and effective and was welcomed by all concerned.
Particularly welcome was the feedback that the presentation and cleanliness have improved, and the
introduction of Trust-wide initiatives such as vehicle deep-cleaning, clinical waste management and
records management.

Station level Quality Reporting

2012/13 has been the first full year of the use of monthly station level reporting. Under this system a
poster is produced and displayed for each station to show how they are performing in comparison to
their peers against a range of quality measures. This approach is supported by the clinical leadership
structure as Advanced and Senior Paramedics use the information to identify areas of strength and
weakness to drive continuous improvement.

2.3 National Reporting Requirements

Under the national reporting requirements for 2012/13 Quality Accounts, ambulance trusts are
required to report explicitly on performance against some of the national Ambulance Quality
Indicators (AQls) which were introduced in 2011/12:

2.3.1 Category A (Red 1 & 2) Response times

There have been a number of changes in the way in which these the national response time
indicators have been measured over the last year. Previously, all immediately life-threatening calls
were placed Category A, and there were two targets,

| Page 9 of 39



Page 14

e A8: Respond to 75% of Category A calls within 8 minutes with a suitably trained and
equipped response. This could be an ambulance, a Rapid Response Vehicle or a community
responder

e A19: Respond to 95% of Category A calls within 19 minutes with a vehicle capable of carrying
a patient

In 2012/13 these two indicators were the national targets for ambulance trusts and NWAS was
successful in meeting both. All other calls are placed in the four green categories, Green 1 — Green 4

From June 2012, Category A has been divided into Red 1 and Red 2. Red 1 includes approximately
10% of Category A patients who are most at risk though conditions such as cardiac or respiratory
arrest. For Red 1 calls the clock starts immediately the call arrives at the Trust switchboard, whereas
Red 2 and Green calls the clock start is once the nature and location of the call has been confirmed.
From 2013/14 the Red 1 & 2 category will separated into two standards and Trusts will be required
to hit both, along with the existing A19 standard.

The table below shows the performance over the last two years and includes the NWAS ranking
position among the twelve ambulance trusts in England:

Figure 1: Response time performance 2011-2013

2011/12 2012/13
Indicator | Target NWAS l:\a/‘;i;rg Range | Ranking | NWAS x\a;teir?ga; Range Ranking
A8 75% | 76.7% | 76.1% 7;’%2‘8‘ 3/12 | 76.8% | 75.5% 77273; 4=/12
arei:ultéf 75% - - - . 73.5% | 74.0% 77%%' 9/12
arei:uztéf 75% - - - . 76.6% | 75.6% 7726'.89' 2=/12
ﬁx?/z F;egd 95% | 95.5% | 96.8% %zg‘i' 9/12 | 95.1% | 96.0% %;'3’ 9/12

The Trust is very pleased to report that both national targets for response times in 2012/13 were
achieved.

NWAS NHS Trust considers that this data is as described through effective use of our available
resources. The success in meeting the main targets in 2012/13 was in spite of very high increases in
activity. 999 activity was 4.5% above planned levels, with a high preponderance of Red 1 & 2 calls
which were 8.7% up on previous years. The Board of Directors has approved a plan for the delivery
of the new standards in 2013/14

2.3.2 Quality Outcomes

The other requirements for ambulance trusts to report are from the Ambulance Clinical Quality
Indicators. These indicators have been developed to give information on clinical effectiveness by
assessing the outcomes achieved for patients with Heart Attack (Myocardial Infarction or Ml) and
Cardiac Arrest. More detail on NWAS performance against each of the outcomes is given in section
2.5.1. For the purpose of meeting Quality Account requirements, we have to report on care bundle
performance for Ml and stroke. It should be noted that these care bundles do not coincide with the
care bundles which NWAS uses internally and which are reported in section 2.5.2

| Page 10 of 39



Page 15

ACQls are reported national four months in arrear as they are dependent on gathering outcome
information from hospital trusts. For this reason there are no figures available after December 2012.
Figure 2 gives details of performance over the last two years.

| Page 11 of 39



Figure 2: ACQI Care Bundle Performance - 2011/13

Reporting Period 1: April 2011 — March 2012
AQI Care Bundle Performance Apr 11 May 11 Jun 11 Jul 11 Aug 11 Sep 11 Oct 11 Nov 11 Dec 11 Jan 12 Feb 12 Mar 12
NWAS: Outcomes from Acute ST-
elevation Mvocardial Infarction— 79.2% 74.3% 75.2% 69.6% 86.1% 75.6% 71.5% 75.0% 75.7% 82.5% 82.4% 82.1%
v (160/202) | (156/210) | (161/214) | (151/217) | (152/183) (133/176) (118/165) (111/148) (131/173) (137/166) | (108/131) | (124/151)
Care Bundle
. 70.2 68.9 71.7 74.4 74.9 76.7 74.0 75.2 72.5 76.4 78.1 75.8
National Average (%) & Range (%) (55.0 - 86.2) (82.4-16.7) | (87.2-0.0) (93.4-0.0) (87.3-0.0) (100 — 54.6) (98.0-50.0) | (98.0-60.9) (100 - 60.2) (95.2 - 63.5) (100-46.0) | (94.7-59.1)
Ranking 7/12 6/12 5/12 8/12 4/12 10/12 7/12 9/12 7/12 3/12 5/12 5/12
NWAS:
Outcomes from Stroke — 96.0% 95.6% 96.5% 95.8% 98.4% 97.2% 97.3% 98.8% 98.5% 98.5% 98.3% 99.0%
(285/297) | (344/360) | (329/341) | (361/377) | (362/368) (278/286) (660/678) (676/684) (669/679) (528/536) | (520/529) | (817/825)
Care Bundle
. 91.3 90.4 92.7 93.2 93.8 94.5 94.2 95.5 95.7 95.5 95.8 95.8
National Average (%) & Range (%) (100 - 84.0) (99.3-77.3) (98.7 - 78.0) (100 — 88.8) (98.4 - 85.0) (99.3-84.1) (97.3-88.4) (99.1 - 80.0) (100 -90.7) (100 - 81.8) (100 - 87.2) (100 -91.4)
Ranking 3/12 3/12 3/12 3/12 1/12 3/12 1/12 2/12 2/12 2/12 2/12 2/12 U
Q
«Q
()
Reporting Period 2: April 2012 — December 2012 —_
AQl Care Bundle Apr 12 May 12 Jun 12 Jul 12 Aug 12 Sep 12 Oct 12 Nov 12 Dec 12 Jan | Feb | Mar o
12 12 12
NWAS: Outcomes from Acute ST- 76.3% 85.2% 76.5% 83.1% 87.5% 88.1% 85.2% 83.7% 84.3% Data not available at
elevation Myocardial Infarction— | (151/198) (150/176) (189/247) (157/190) (168/192) (171/194) (196/230) (154/184) (193/229) time of writing
Care Bundle
National Average & Range 79.5 78.8 74.6 78.7 76.1 77.2 78.4 77.8 77.5
8 g (100 - 71.6)) (100 — 68.6) (100 — 60.8) (92.1-25.0) (100 -65.7) (100 - 57.9) (100 -65.2) (100 — 65.6) (100 — 50.0)
Ranking 9/12 5/12 5/12 4/12 3/12 3/12 5/12 6/12 4/12
NWAS:
Outcomes from Stroke — 98.9% 98.8% 98.9% 98.8% 99.5% 98.3% 99.0% 99.2% 99.3% Data not available at
utcomes iro oke (642/649) (642/650) (648/655) (1025/1037) | (1086/1092) | (1049/1062) | (1064/1075) (988/996) (1061/1069) time of writing
Care Bundle
National Average & Range 95.1 95.3 95.1 96.5 95.3 96.2 95.0 96.0 95.5
g g (100-82.6) | (100-84.3) (100 -88.9) (100 —92.6) (100 — 85.9) (100 —92.9) (100 — 88.1) (100 -91.9) (100 - 91.0)
Ranking 2/12 2/12 2/12 2/12 3/12 3/12 3/12 3/12 3/12

| Page 12 of 39



Page 17

NWAS NHS Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:
e Data is processed through a series of pre-defined criteria to ensure it has been collected,
analysed and collated in accordance to the latest Ambulance Quality Indicator: Clinical
Outcome technical guidance.

NWAS has taken and will continue to take the following actions to improve clinical practice and so
the quality of its services, by using clinical action plans. This process will be reviewed and closely
monitored by the Emergency Service Clinical Quality Business Group with emphasis firmly placed on
local responsibility, accountability and ownership of implementing the recommendations identified
from the audits.

2.4 Indicators of Quality — Patient Safety

2.4.1 Clinical Safety Indicator Reporting

Clinical Safety Indicators (CSls) are a set of measures we assess against aspects of clinical safety. Our
CSls include Safeguarding Services, Infection Prevention & Control, Medicines Management and
Clinical Risk.

Safeguarding indicators measure the quality and timeliness of vulnerable people referrals, Infection
Prevention and Control indicators measure compliance against cleanliness, sharps, management of
equipment etc. Clinical Risk indicators are measured against delays in emergency response and
attendance, and Medicines Management indicators audit the quality of the medicines procedures.

We have developed a “care bundle” approach to clinical assessment and care to increase the
numbers of patients who receive all the required elements of care and this is audited on a variety of
bundles on a monthly basis.

Progress on the Clinical Safety Indicators is reported to each meeting of the Board of Directors and at
all levels across the organisation. Significant work has been undertaken this year to improve the
reporting processes for CSls. This has included revision of the IPC questions and IT reporting process,
providing CSI reports by Sector and Station, identifying improvement opportunities. Our clinical
leadership arrangements are essential in making sure that these opportunities are acted upon locally.

2.4.2 Safeguarding Services

This section provides an overview of the progress made by the Trust in relation to safeguarding and
protecting children, young people and adults who may be at risk. The Trust provides regulated
activity and has a legal duty to protect patient’s staff and the public from harm while carrying out its
roles and functions.

National Developments and Drivers

There have been a number of publications including the Mid Staffordshire Public Enquiry (Francis
reports), The Winterbourne View Serious Case Review, the Savile report, The Children’s strategy and
Outcomes Forum recommendations, Serious Case Reviews and Domestic Homicide reviews across
the North West.

| Page 13 of 39



Page 18

All of these publications highlight a range of issues relevant to the care and treatment of vulnerable
patients. NWAS is taking forward developments which are Director-led and aspire to show that
lessons are being learned when things go wrong and/ or to improve practice and reporting. A
number of work-streams and action plans are being progressed and monitored to ensure inter-
departmental ‘safer working practices’ across the Trust.

There is an action plan which specifically addresses recommendations from the review of the Savile
reports and a number of these actions have already been completed. Winterbourne View and all
other learning from SCR’s and DHR’s are monitored via a learning lessons action plan which is
monitored and communicated to staff. In addition the Trust has a Vulnerable Persons plan which
includes issues for people with mental health problems and learning disability. This action plan
includes lessons from Winterbourne View.

Local Developments

e The Trust interfaces with 23 Local Safeguarding Children Boards (LSCB’s) and 23 Safeguarding
Adult Boards across the North West. The Safeguarding Team has attended and presented to
a number of Boards over the year and a plan for local engagement with all the Boards will be
developed over the next year.

e The Safeguarding Vulnerable Persons Policy and Procedure and the Sudden Unexpected
Death of Children Procedure (SUDC) were updated to reflect lessons learned from Serious
Case Reviews and a number of other requirements. The implementation of Safeguarding
Procedures is monitored and compliance is reported as a series of Clinical Safety (Quality)
Indicators.

e Each month safeguarding processes are audited and organised into Care Bundles.
Compliance is monitored monthly and any notable concerns addressed. Over 2012-2013
Clinical Safety Indicators for safeguarding have expanded to include patients with learning
disability, mental health problems and domestic abuse for both adults and children. This
development is in its infancy and will continue to be monitored. In addition the Trust has
completed the Commissioners audit and is undertaking a Section 11 audit which will be
shared with the LSCB’s across the North West.

e Mandatory training has been updated for corporate staff and for hands on clinical staff and
call takers. The uptake of mandatory safeguarding training for both adults and children is
high and monitored via a monthly dashboard of compliance. A concerted effort has been
made to train staff in the call centres as they handle a lot of information relating to
safeguarding adults and children.

e The Trust has been inspected twice during 2012-2013 by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)
and standard 7 was inspected. The CQC were positive about safeguarding arrangements and
processes within the Trust.

Safeguarding Reports

The following safeguarding reports provide a snapshot of activity

| Page 14 of 39



Page 19

Figure 3

200 Total Safeguarding Referrals 2012/13

600

500

400 - M Total of Adult referrals

300 - M Total of Child referrals

200

100

0 4

Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Figure 3 shows the total number of safeguarding referrals made for adults and children across the
North West in this year. There is a gradual upward trend for adult referrals.

Figure 4
Number of Adult & Child referrals received at NWAS & Area
Level - 2012/13
900
800 4 Number of Adult & Child
700 / ~ referrals NWAS
T — —,-—\

600 = -~ Number of Adult & Child
200 referrals Greater Manchester
400
300 ———— . ___— T~ Number of Adult & Child
200 ~ — referrals Cheshire/Mersey
100 — S ——— Number of Adult & Child

0 | : | | : | : | : | | | referrals Cumbria/Lancs

Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Figure 4 shows the combined number of child and adult referals against the total number of referral
made in each month (shown in blue).

Figure 5

Adult Referral Care Bundle Compliance
96.0%

94.0% -
92.0% -
90.0% -
BBO% -~
86.0%

B4.0% -

82.0% - T T T - - - - ; : - -
Apr | May | June | July | Aug | Sept | Oct Nov | Dec | Jlan | Feb | Mar

—— Compliance 88.0% 94.4% 88.9% 89.2% 88.6%|95.2% 87.7% 89.6% 91.1% 86.4% 91.5%|91.9%
Target 95.0%|95.0%|95.0% 95.0% 95.0%95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0%

| Page 15 of 39



Page 20

Figure 5 shows care bundle compliance over the year which has fluctuated between agreed
compliance at 95% and as low as 86%. The care bundle monitors demographic data including, names
ethnicity, address, concerns, consent, outcome and time frames.

Figure 6

Child Referral Care Bundle Compliance

100.0%

90.0%
80.0% /\

= —
/N N\

N

60.0%

70.0% J \ /
N—

50.0%

40.0%
30.0%

20.0%

10.0%

0.0%

Apr | May | June | July

Aug

Sept

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Compliance [70.0%(71.9%90.0%80.0%62.8%

68.7%

77.1%

92.3%

75.0%

89.0%

94.7%

80.0%

—Target 95.0%95.0%95.0%/95.0%95.0%

95.0%

95.0%

95.0%

95.0%

95.0%

95.0%

95.0%

Figure 6 shows compliance against a similar group of domains and these include monitoring of name,

address, ethnicity, who has parental responsibility, concerns and outcomes as well as timeframes.

Figure 7
Adult Reasons for Referral 2012/2013
data taken from May 2012 to March 2013
17% 16%
5% B Physical signs/Domestic Abuse
0
15% B Behavioural signs
® Environment
16% M Disclosure by victim
0

32%

M Inconsistent story

m Drug/Substance misuse/Alcohol

| Page 16 of 39



Page 21

Figure 8
Most Reported Reasons Why the Adultis at Risk 2012/2013
data taken from May 2012 to March 2013
6%
m Older People
M Long term condition
= Mental Health Problems
17% m Physical Disability
M Logged as a repeat caller
24%

Figures 7 & 8 show reasons for referral, why the adult is at risk. This is the first year data has been
collected in this way. Although not shown on the above charts, concern for the patient’s welfare is
reported in 59% of cases with self-neglect accounting for 21% of all referrals.

Figure 9

Child Reasons for Referral 2012/13

data from May 2012 to Mar 2013

B Physical Signs

7% 9%

M Parental Incapacity
® Inconsistent Story

M Disclosures by victim

cog W Domestic Abuse/Adult Aggressive
a
22% m Drugs/substance abuse

M Environment

5%

M Behaviour

| Page 17 of 39



Page 22

Figure 10

Most Reported Reasons Why the Child is at Risk and

Presenting Concerns 2012/2013
data taken from May 2012 to March 2013

6%

m Concern for Welfare

H Neglect by 3rd Party

m Emotional/Psychological Abuse

8% 53% M Physical Abuse
B Mental Health

m Family History

Figure 10 show that 22% of child referrals were made due to parental drug/ substance misuse and
22% due to parental incapacity. For 53% of referrals the child was deemed to be at risk due to
parental mental ill health (chart 8). Other categories include neglect physical abuse and concern for
welfare.

The Trust is pleased to report on the significant progress that has been made across Safeguarding
this year. We believe that we provide a high level of service to vulnerable people in the North West.

2.4.3 Clinical Incident Reporting

The Trust encourages and promotes incident reporting to ensure that we are compliant with our
duties and obligations but also to ensure that understand our risks and implement appropriate
service developments to address areas of weakness. To make this process more accessible for all
staff, incident reporting has been made available through a web based system process within the last
12 months.

All clinical and patient safety incidents are assessed for trend and cause analysis, overseen by the
Clinical Governance Management Group. The Trust has an Incident Learning Forum, chaired by an
Executive Director, which considers any identified trends and seeks assurance that appropriate
action plans are in place to address weaknesses.

Clinical safety incidents are categorised by the Risk & Safety Department to allow for National Patient
Safety Agency (NPSA), Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency (MHRA) and where
appropriate Health and Safety Executive (HSE) reporting. The Department are responsible for the
collation of the data working with colleagues to identify risks and the corresponding control
measures for implementation.

Where another healthcare or professional body raising a clinical incident about the care provided by
NWAS staff, these are overseen and managed by the Making Experiences Count team. This means
that all incidents, and in particular those that are high risk, are recorded and investigated
appropriately. The specific focus on high risk events ensures that risks are identified and mitigated in
a timely manner

| Page 18 of 39



Page 23

For the year ending March 2013, the Trust recorded 2051 clinical and patient safety incidents and
near-misses showing an increase on the previous year. Early indications for the on line reporting
system show that there is a further increase in overall reporting. The Trust continues to welcome an
increasing level of incident reporting as there is no supporting evidence to suggest that serious
incidents are becoming more frequent. The increase in overall reporting reflects the fact that the
incident reporting system is well established and imbedded in Trust processes.

Of these, a total of 118 incidents were reported to the NPSA, representing a decrease in overall
reporting. This has been as a result of mapping work completed with the NPSA to ensure accurate
reporting. 23 incidents were reported using the NHS North West’s Strategic Executive Information
System (StEIS). Each StEIS report is subject to a detailed investigation, approved by the appropriate
Executive Director. No overall trend has been identified through the StEIS reports.

Figure 11 below shows the total number of clinical incidents and near-misses reported last year by
category. Figure 12 shows those that are reported to the National Patient Safety Agency, which are

all patient-related.

Figure 11: Clinical Safety Incidents by Type 2011/12

Total
Controlled Drugs 444
Medicine Management 443
Access/admission/transfer issue 337
Equipment Fault/Failure 202
Clinical Assessment 114
Clinical Treatment 106
Infection Control 90
Consent/Communication/Confidentiality 81
Documentation 55
Slips, Trips or Falls 54
Manual Handling 35
Sharps Injury/ Incident 30
Physical Assault 17
Vehicle Issue 15
RTC/ Vehicle 11
Verbal Abuse 11
Exposure to Harmful Substance 5
Abuse of Service 1
Totals: 2051
Figure 12: Patient Safety incidents by type 2011/12
Total
Slips, Trips or Falls 32
Access/admission/transfer issue 29
Manual Handling 21
Clinical Assessment 8
RTC/ Vehicle 7
Consent/Communication/Confidentiality 4
Clinical Treatment 3
Equipment Fault/Failure 3

| Page 19 of 39



Page 24

Medicine Management
Sharps Injury/ Incident
Controlled Drugs
Documentation
Physical Assault
Threating behaviour
Vehicle Issue

Totals: 118

RlRr|lRP|RP[RP|lw|w

2.4.4 Infection Prevention and Control

The Trust’s Medical Director fulfils the role of Director of Infection Prevention and Control (DIPC). He
is supported by the Head of Clinical Safety, three full time Specialist Paramedics in Infection
Prevention and Control (SPIPC) and one Clinical Safety Practitioner who also liaises with the
Safeguarding team. The team are responsible for supporting staff to ensure they adopt best practice,
providing expert advice, and providing assurance that stations and vehicles are clean through
independent audits as well as liaising with the Service Delivery team to ensure goals and targets are
met.

The Trust has approximately 56 staff acting as Infection Control Champions, supporting the Specialist
Paramedics as well as Sector Managers. These are members of staff who have a particular interest in
improving infection, prevention and control standards and volunteering to take a lead role in their
local area. The Trust has six Advanced Paramedics who also ‘lead’ on clinical safety and IPC within
Service Delivery and support the SPIPCs in the development and implementation of new initiatives
improving standards of existing ones.

During 2012/13 we have made a number of improvements to both reporting and ensuring high
standards of cleanliness and infection prevention and control. These include:

e The development of the “Mind The Gap” report which highlights the comparative differences
between the Specialists audit result data and Service Delivery audit data. The data reported
is then used to consider ways to reduce the disparity and improve standards.

e The 6x6 Advanced Paramedics have now been established and have regular meeting to
report any issues and develop Infection prevention control across NWAS e.g. hand hygiene
audits, sharps safety initiative and compliance etc.

= There has been a review of the training package that is being delivered to all new starters
and staff on mandatory training.

= |PC policies and procedures have been reviewed and updated.

= Deep clean audits have been developed to monitor the quality and consistency of vehicle
deep cleans. IPC clinical audit and the deep clean audits have also been scrutinised by
Mersey Internal Audit.

= Reports are now being presented to the Quality Committee on a bi-monthly basis for scrutiny
and to give assurances that standards are being met

=  SPIPCs have been liaising with Operational Managers, Sector Managers and Service Delivery
Managers to conduct walk around audits to high light problem areas and what to look for
whilst conducting audits.

= The new Mini audit books incorporating Medicine Management have been printed and
distributed across all areas to be used by APs and Sector Managers or above.

= (Clinical Safety Indicators continue to be reviewed and developed for IPC.

| Page 20 of 39



Page 25

Clinical Safety Indicators

A Clinical Quality Improvement Action Plan has been developed to monitor policy compliance at an
operational level. These cover the management of all the Infection Prevention Control CSI care
bundles have been developed to produce a single indicator percentage score, based on a number of
metrics within each indicator (a similar process to the current CPl Care Bundles). A care bundle
compliance score has also been developed for the bundles. This reports the percentage of
vehicles/stations that achieved 100% compliance for all metrics. All the non-compliances are then
picked up by the Advanced Paramedics (APs) who will then develop an action plan to cascade down
to the Operations Managers, Senior Paramedics and Assistant Operations Managers. Once
completed the APs will report back their findings.

The Board receives information on the care bundles relating to cleanliness of PES, PTS vehicles and
stations. The compliance rate for the last quarter of 2012/2013 was PES 96.6%, PTS 94.6%, and
Stations 91.6%. This is an average Trust compliance score of 94.3%.

During 2012/2013 there were 174 reported incidences that were under the heading of IPC and
Sharps blood splash incidences of these 18 were wrongly reported under these headings (e.g. safe
guarding, operational incidences etc.) and so ben removed from the totals. This was an increase from
the 58 incidents were reported during the year 2011-2012. The reasons for this may be that staff feel
more comfortable about reporting such incidences and also the ease of reporting. There were some
issues last year that caused a backlog of IRFs that needed to be imputed on to the system but this has
now been resolved with the introduction of the web based system.

Figure 13: Healthcare Acquired Infection Incidents 2012/13

Incident type No. of incidents
Clean needle 6
Dirty needle 32
Ampoule/glass incident 10
Contact with bodily fluids 40
Crew contact with known infectious disease 12
Contaminated equipment 8
infestation 2
Not notified of patients infectious status 9
Sterile equipment 8
Contaminated equipment 3
Medical equipment 1
Other factors 8
Splash/ingestion incident 8
Staff welfare 9
Totals: 156

Examples of improvements made in practice to reduce the number of incidents include:

e A revised Needlestick / Blood splash ‘A-D’ step by step instructional poster displayed on
stations to advise staff how to prevent and deal with bodily fluid incidents

e Action taken to ensure that staff are aware of known infection risks. Where possible our
Emergency Operational Control Centre staff obtain this information and relay it to
operational staff.

= A campaign to highlight information on correct waste management and sharps disposal
following several incidents where poor practice was identified.

= Training and development packages delivered to staff across NWAS.

= Review and acquisition of safe equipment e.g. cannulas, sharps bins, etc.

| Page 21 of 39



Page 26

= |ssue of bulletins and articles in Clear Vision on IPC related topics.

2.5 Clinical Effectiveness

The Trust has been in the forefront of the development of ways of measuring the effectiveness of
clinical interventions by ambulance staff. Internally our main focus is on the set of Clinical
Performance Indicators (CPls) that we have developed. We report in care bundles and details are
given below. We also report against a national set of Ambulance Clinical Quality Outcomes, as
discussed in section 2.3.2.

2.5.1 ACQ!: Clinical Quality Outcomes

Each month the Trust submits performance figures against the national ACQl outcomes. The
performance figures area derived from audit of ambulance Patient Report Forms, and form
information provided by receiving hospitals. The outcomes are therefore four months in arrears to
allow for effective data collection. For some indicators the numbers of relevant cases is relatively
small so there is significant variation between months. To give an overall picture of the Trust’s
performance, a summary of the December 2012 performance is shown below:

Figure 14: ACQl Performance

ACQl — December 2012
Published Data

NWAS December 2012

Performance

NWAS December 2011

Performance

Commentary on December
2012 performance

Outcomes from Cardiac
Arrest—ROSC at Hospital
(overall)

26.8% (120/447)

26.2% (76/290)

The average percentage number of
patients achieving ROSC on arrival at
hospital was reported at 24.2%.
Performance ranged from 14.8% to
33.0% across all Ambulance Trusts.

Outcomes from Cardiac
Arrest—ROSC at Hospital
(Utstein—those in VF/VT)

35.3% (18/51)

27.8% (10/36)

The average percentage number of
patients in this group achieving ROC is
41.0%. Performance across England
ranged from 30.2% to 54.8%.

Outcomes from Acute ST-
elevation Myocardial
Infarction—thrombolysis CTN
60 minutes

37.5% (3/8)

66.7% (10/15)

Outcomes from Acute ST-
elevation Myocardial
Infarction—PPCI CTB 150
minutes

85.2% (127/149)

73.5% (95/112)

Acute STEMI thrombolysis and PPCI
data is taken from the national MINAP
audit database and is reliant on
hospitals reviewing and updating with
eligible patients.

Outcomes from Acute ST-
elevation Myocardial
Infarction—Care Bundle

84.3% (193/229)

75.4% (129/171)

An average of 77.5% of patients
with a pre-hospital diagnosis of
suspected ST-elevation myocardial
infarction received the
appropriate care bundle.
Performance across England
ranged from 100% to 63.7%.

Outcomes from Stroke— FAST
positive CTD 60 minutes

71.2% (267/375)

75.2% (197/262)

An average of 57.7% of FAST
positive patients, who were
assessed face to face, arrived at a
hyper-acute stroke centre within
60 minutes of the call being
connected to the ambulance
service.  Performance  across
England ranged from 42.3% to
71.2%.

| Page 22 of 39



Page 27

Outcomes from Stroke— Care
Bundle

99.3% (1062/1069)

98.5% (667/677)

An average of 95.5% of patients
received an appropriate care bundle.
Performance ranged from 91.0% to
100.0%.

Outcomes from Cardiac
Arrest—Survival to Discharge
(overall)

6.2% (200/323)

5.0% (8/159)

An average of 6.4% of patients was
discharged from hospital alive.
Performance throughout England
ranged from 2.2% to 13.0%

Outcomes from Cardiac
Arrest—Survival to Discharge
(Utstein—those in VF/VT)

12.9% (4/31)

5.0% (1/20)

On average 17.9% of patients from
this group were discharged from
hospital alive.

This indicator is characterised by
small  numbers.  Performance
percentage figures derived from
these figures are likely to be
subject to large variation, within
and across months. This month
performance ranged from 5.0%
(N=20) to 31.4% (N=35) across

mainland England

Full details of the ACQl performance for all ambulance trusts are available at:
http://www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/ambulance-quality-indicators/

2.5.2 Clinical Performance Indicators (CPls)

Clinical Performance Indicators or CPls are a set of measures that identify how staff are performing
against a set of prescribed actions that are applicable in seven clinical and two non-clinical situations.
There are five established clinical areas identified are: Asthma, Cardiac Chest Pain Management,
Hypoglycaemia (low blood sugar) Management, Pain (non-cardiac) Management and Stroke
Management. During 2012/13 an additional two clinical indicators were introduced and these are
Paediatric Care: Management of Febrile convulsions and Trauma Care: Suspected below knee single
limb fracture including ankle. These two new clinical indicators reflect additions to the National
Ambulance Audit programme. Two further indicators look at the standard of completion of Patient
Report Forms and the compliance to using a Patient Pathway tool.

The expected interventions for each clinical performance indicator are grouped into sets of required
interventions known as “Care Bundles”. Clinical effectiveness is measured in terms of all the
interventions in the care bundle being carried out on each patient. A score of 50% means that half of
all patients seen with a condition have received the complete bundle of interventions required. The
remaining patients will have had a proportion but not all the interventions specified for that clinical
condition. As the needs of individual patients vary, a score of 100% would not necessarily be
expected at all times.

Progress on these CPls is reported to each meeting of the Board of Directors and at all levels across
the organisation. NWAS agreed a 5% improvement target with commissioners for 2012/13 CPI
performance as part of its commitment to improving quality. Significant effort was placed on the
development of monthly quality improvement planning at Sector level across the organisation. An
incentive scheme and the possibility to be awarded the Clinical Quality Improvement Award in
recognition of staff and management contribution to Quality Improvement at the Trust Annual
Award Ceremony created a real focus and interest in clinical quality at all levels across the Trust.
Figure 15 below, contains CPI performance for 2012/13. Although not as successful in previous years
where all agreed targets were met, there was a year on year improvement in each case. The
Paramedic Emergency Service management are committed to improving clinical care dispensed to

| Page 23 of 39



Page 28

patients and therefore have committed to re-invigorating the focus on quality improvement at team
and sector level throughout the organisation.

Figure 15: CPI Performance 2012/13

2012/13 Variance
Care Bundle Topic Stretch Target (%) Q4 20.1.2/ 13 (from Quality
Quality Target posmo.n Target)
(Cumulative)

(%)
Asthma 85.1 83.9 -1.2
Cardiac Chest Pain 56.2 66.9 +10.7
Hypoglycaemia 95.0 98.6 +3.6
Pain Management 90.6 89.8 -0.8
PRF Completion 89.4 86.3 -3.1
Stroke 87.9 84.2 -3.7

2.6 Indicators of Quality — Patient Experience

2.6.1 Access

Paramedic Emergency Service

In 2012/13 the Trust was successful in meeting the two national response time standards for
ambulance trusts in England. The figures below demonstrate the pattern of Category A activity and
performance over the year.

The blue bars each month show the predicted levels of Category A activity and the red columns are
the actual levels of activity. They demonstrate the pattern of increased activity that was seen across
the country in 2012/13. Overall the activity was 4.5% above plan. This put significant strain on the
Trust’s services and its ability to respond. The position was exacerbated by the fact that this increase
was seen disproportionately in Red calls. Total Category A activity for 2012/13 increased by 9.4% on
the previous year. This is in stark contrast to the forecast of zero growth set within the contract by
Commissioners. This is a national pattern, but NWAS has been severely affected by this rise in
demand.

The Trust has extensive performance management arrangements to ensure that a tight managerial
grip is held on this issue. One additional area of concern is that hospital turnaround times have failed
to improve and with the increasing activity, ambulances have been tied up at hospital A&E
departments particularly during times of high activity and surges in activity.

Further Remedial action is being taken. This includes:

=  Continued development of the work of the Urgent Care Desk and Urgent Care Service to
triage out less urgent calls.

= An increased use of the partnership working with the Voluntary Ambulance Sector to
transport less urgent cases, thereby freeing up NWAS ambulances to respond to the more
serious calls.

=  Further investment in Hospital Arrival Screens (supported by funding from Commissioners) to
provide better information about the flow of activity, to give hospitals more advance warning
of inbound cases and to help monitor the performance of A&E departments from a
turnaround point of view. This will be fully operational for 2013/14 and will support the
national requirements for the turnaround targets.

| Page 24 of 39



Page 29

Figure 16: NWAS Category A8 Performance 2012/13

78.0%

76.0%

A8%
Incidents

74.0%

72.0%

70.0%

68.0% 1 . . - " - ;
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Cat A Incidents Predicted W Cat A Incidents (actual) —@— A8% Actual (month) —#— A8% Actual (cumul) — — A8% Trajectory (month) — — A8% Trajectory (cumul)

Figure 17: NWAS Category A19 Performance 2012/13

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Cat A Conveying Incidents Predicted mmmm Cat A Conveying Incidents (actual) —&— A19% Actual (month)
—#— A19% Actual (cumul) — — A19% Trajectory (month) — = A19% Trajectory (cumul)

Although the Trust is commissioned to provide a service that meets the national targets at whole
Trust level, the Trust is working with commissioners to try to ensure as equitable as possible levels as
possible. Inevitably, however, there is variation in the response time performance across the very
diverse region. In 2012/13 the outcome was:

Figure 18: Commissioning Area headline performance

2012/13
A8% A19%

Greater o

Manchester e

Lancashire 78.53% 96.10%
—
Merseyside 79.81% 95.61%
NWAS Overall 76.43% 95.11%

| Page 25 of 39



Page 30

The Trust will continue to seek to meet performance targets across the region. A key aspect of this
work will be the further development of its use of complementary resources such as Community First
Responder and Staff Responder schemes.

Patient Transport Service

The major issue facing the PTS service has been the competitive tendering of the service by
commissioners. The contract was let in five county level contracts. The Trust was pleased to be
successful in four out of the five contracts, but is disappointed to report that it was unsuccessful in
Greater Manchester. The Trust did achieve significant cost reductions and quality improvements
through investment in infrastructure and improved management, and the performance against the
2012/13 contract quality standards was as follows:

Figure 19: PTS Contract quality indictor performance

Indicator Lead Director Target Year End
Arrival to Appointment: -45 minutes t
rr|va. o Appointment: -45 minutes to DC 60% 66.8%
+15 minutes *
Ti hicle—N h
rr:::ﬁtc;rsl:e icle o greater than 60 DC 75% 75.9%
llecti f ithi
rcnc:nﬁi'g:*n after treatment within 60 DC 85% 85.8%
llecti f ithi
rcnc:nﬁi'g:*n after treatment within 90 DC 95% 94.2%
PT lls A
P S Calls Answered DC 75% 88.6%
PT I i
P S Calls answered in 30 Seconds DC 40% 48.3%
PTS A A Del
P S Average Answer Delay DC 4 mins 02:21

The Trust is committed to further major investment in infrastructure for PTS, including a new
Telephony System (Shoretel), Mobile Data Technology and Automated Vehicle Location System
(AVLS), to enhance performance and quality

2.6.2 Patient and Public Engagement

The Trust meets with a wide range of groups and individuals to ensure that our services meet the
needs of the communities we serve. A new stakeholder framework has been developed to take into
account the changing landscape of the NHS and social care services and create a platform for the
Trust to build on how it informs and influences all stakeholders with regard to its service strategy and
how it listens and responds to their requirements.

A Communities Strategy has been produced to demonstrate our commitment to communities and
deliver a seamless service for patients in partnership with other health care professionals, act on the
views of patients, value diversity and ensure equality of access to services, promote healthy and safe
lives, protect the environment and be a good corporate citizen. This overarching strategy is
supported by a number of key community focussed policies including our Communication and
Engagement Strategy, our Estates Strategy, the Complementary Resources Strategy and our
Paramedic Pathfinder and Community Care Pathways programme. These strategies have been
approved by our Board of Directors and are overseen by Trust Committees.

| Page 26 of 39



Page 31

As well as statutory bodies such as Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Health and Wellbeing Boards
and Local Involvement Networks (now Healthwatch), the Trust works with organisations linked to
specific locations and groups, regularly contributing to Health Melas, PRIDE and other community
events across the region. Specific examples of how we have worked with our communities during
2021/13 include:

e An open day linked with the launch of the Trust’s new patient experience toolkit was held at
Trust Headquarters in Bolton. 300 members of the public attended to hear about our
services and plans for the future as well as trying out some of our approaches to patient
experience first-hand.

e We consulted with our members, community groups and LINks on a variety of Trust policies
including our Communities Strategy, Communications and Engagement strategy and our
equality and diversity priorities.

e A major stakeholder engagement programme was undertaken in preparation for the new
patient transport contract delivered in Cheshire, Merseyside, Cumbria and Lancashire. The
contract itself was influenced by feedback from patients and public throughout the region.

e We have met our 8,000 membership target from communities across the whole of the North
West. A shadow Council of Governors has been elected, induction training has been
completed and the Council have held their first meeting. All members receive a regular
newsletter are invited to attend Trust events. Three dedicated Members Events have taken
place and a new Governor Zone has recently been introduced on the Trust’s website.

e Our social media programme enables direct engagement with the public and stakeholders.
Three successful ‘Tweetathons’ and other initiatives have grown our followers to xxx.

e Community Responders and community defibrillation programmes have been developed
with communities across the North West region and the Trust has recognised the first 20
CardiacSmart communities in partnership with the British Heart Foundation.

e We are working with high volume service users to understand the drivers for calling 999 and
have launched a marketing campaign to help the public understand what to expect from
their ambulance service. Public education has been further enhanced through our work
Channel 4 in the production of the popular programme ‘999 — What’s Your Emergency?’

e Our award winning patient experience board game is used with community groups to
identify gaps in public perception, service quality and information as well as involve them in
service redesign.

2.6.3 Complaints, PALS and Compliments

In 2012/13 the Trust received a total of 474 complaints, 2277 PALS contacts and 819 compliments. A
monthly breakdown is shown below.

Figure 20: Complaints, PALS and Compliments Data 2008/09 — 2012/13

COMPLAINTS

Apr | May | Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar | Total

2008/2009 | 27 32 33 | 37 20 41 37 32 31 | 34 26 22 372

2009/2010 | 31 27 39 51 41 34 40 51 41 47 73 78 553

2010/2011 | 42 41 40 | 43 30 50 35 46 43 | 36 33 44 | 483

2011/2012 | 48 27 37 | 30 28 19 32 33 36 | 35 28 33 386

2012/2013 | 46 39 33 | 41 41 50 43 41 24 | 40 45 31 | 474

| Page 27 of 39



Page 32

PALS

Apr | May | Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar | Total
2008/2009 | 121 | 124 | 102 | 139 | 106 | 129 | 147 104 | 110 | 136 | 137 | 160 | 1515
2009/2010 | 145 | 99 | 144 | 174 | 111 | 151 | 184 | 152 | 116 | 134 | 187 | 213 | 1810
2010/2011 | 159 | 140 | 195 | 155 | 161 | 130 | 112 173 | 150 | 173 | 185 | 274 | 2007
2011/2012 | 194 | 213 | 156 | 196 | 191 | 202 | 204 | 245 | 201 | 233 | 223 | 164 | 2422
2012/2013 | 207 | 234 | 197 | 190 | 176 | 174 | 240 | 241 | 163 | 171 | 134 | 150 | 2277
COMPLIMENTS

Apr | May | Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar | Total
2009/2010 | 63 41 62 | 57 73 45 53 67 35 | 62 47 65 670
2010/2011 | 62 67 66 | 62 56 66 61 67 46 | 68 50 77 | 748
2011/2012 55 47 77 67 74 78 81 60 62 78 71 53 803
2012/2013 45 74 52 36 39 35 99 107 45 156 62 69 819

The number of complaints made to the Trust increased over the last year which reflects the increase
in activity, particularly for the Paramedic Emergency Service. PALS queries have decreased slightly in
the last year though compliments have increased.

Patient Transport Service (PTS) - Complaints

During 2012/13, Patient Transport Service generated 21.6% of the complaints against the Trust. This
is a significant decrease on the previous year. Both failure to transport and delays in transport
remain the most common causes for complaint. Figure 21 below details the types of complaints
defined by geographical/service area and right service type.

Figure 21: PTS Complaint categories and geographical/service area data

Cumbria
Lancs

Cheshire
Mersey

GM

Total

PTS
Control

PTS CP

PTS
Ops

VCS

Failure to Transport
(PTS)

3

5

11

19

18

PTS Transport

0o

(o))

Delay in PTS Transport

[EEN
o

=
(%]

Inappropriate Care

Staff Attitude

Staff Conduct

Transport Other

Other

Care and Treatment

Communication

Driving Skills

Driving Standards

Communication and
Information

OFRIN|IN|IO|IO|FRP| W WIOIN|PA

R O|IO|O|NWIWIO|kRkrlu|p~lU

OR|IO|IO|RINW| bW

RININN WO

RIO|O|INIO|[RP|IUNO|W|O

O|O0O|l0O(0O|0O|O|R,r|O|O|OC|O|O

OININ|IO|IW|h|RLRIYNWU

O|O|O|0O|O|O|O|O|O|OC|O|F

EOL

o

Policy/Procedure

Ol

o

[N Y

ol

Staff Conduct

Rlm|O

o|—| O

Totals:

2

2

29

51

102

52

RlO|O|O

48

=RlO|O|O

| Page 28 of 39



Patient Transport Service — PALS

Page

33

As can be seen from Figure ** below, the main areas of PALS concern for the Patient Transport
Service are delays in and out of hospital, the non-arrival of transportation along with querying the

eligibility criteria.

Figure 22: PTS PALS categories and geographical/service area data

i [ etve ] o | vout [ ooy [rroe | o
PTS Transport 93 72 95 260 125 5 130
Delays out of Hospital (PTS) 48 38 114 200 189 0 11
Eligibility Criteria 85 38 20 143 134 0 9
Delays into Hospital (PTS) 29 25 67 121 110 0 11
None Provision of Ambulance | 11 20 59 90 90 0 0
Problems with transporting 14 21 42 77 53 1 23
Patients
None arrival of Ambulance 13 13 42 68 58 0 10
Attitude Staff 23 13 16 52 10 1 41
Communication and 15 12 17 44 34 0 10
information
Expression of Concern 11 10 20 41 19 0 22
Driving Standards 15 5 11 31 0 1 30
Lost Property 9 13 6 28 7 1 20
Staff Conduct 11 4 5 20 2 0 18
Vehicle issues 6 7 0 13 4 0 9
Care/ Treatment Given 4 4 4 12 2 0 10
Early arrival of Ambulance 3 3 3 9 7 0 2
Other 2 2 4 8 4 0 4
Discrimination 0 1 0 1 1 0 0
Navigation 1 0 0 1 0 0 1
Totals: 393 301 525 1219 849 9 361

Paramedic Emergency Service (PES) — Complaints

Figure 23 details the total numbers of PES complaints by both geographical and service area which
represents 78.4% of all complaints. There has been a significant increase in PES complaints which can
be directly correlated to the increase in operational activity. The main areas of concerns continue to
be emergency response, followed by inappropriate care and thirdly, staff conduct.

Figure 23: PES Complaints categories and geographical/service area data

s | Versey | oM | e | oc | 7

Delay in emergency response | 50 45 39 134 132 2

Emergency Response 28 26 25 79 43 36
Inappropriate Care 11 10 15 36 0 36
Staff Conduct 12 5 12 29 0 29
Care and Treatment 3 11 10 24 0 24
999 Call triage 5 5 6 16 16 0

Staff Attitude 6 4 6 16 5 11

| Page 29 of 39



Page 34

Failure to Convey (PES)

[
N

[EY
-

Delay in emergency transfer

Communication

Other

Medical Records

Staff Comments

Damage or loss to property

Driving Skills

Policy/Procedure

OO0 |O|R|IOINW|IWlw

Safeguarding

RO O|R|O|O|R[N|F|H

ORI O(OIN|OIN U0V

RlRlR(R|[RLR|N|wW|N|O

O|O|OC|OC|O|O|Rr|(H~O

RlR|R[RR|INNMNW W[~

Totals: 127

116

129

372

218

154

Paramedic Emergency Service — PALS

The numbers of Paramedic Emergency Service PALS cases have again increased from 2011/12.
Response times continues to be a focus followed by lost property and then care and treatment given.

Figure 24: PES PALS categories and geographical/service area data

Cumbria | Cheshire GM Trust Total CFR EOC | PES Ops
Lancs Mersey wide

Response Times (PEC) 86 116 82 0 284 0 193 91
Lost Property 45 66 51 0 162 0 0 162
Care/ Treatment Given 24 28 109 0 161 0 1 160
Communication and 58 34 43 4 139 0 50 89
information
Attitude Staff 38 40 41 0 119 0 12 107
Expression of Concern 13 16 24 0 53 0 19 34
Driving Standards 20 16 17 0 53 0 0 53
Staff Conduct 7 21 10 0 38 0 2 36
Other 12 16 5 0 33 1 8 24
None Provision of 10 8 5 0 23 0 21 2
Ambulance
None arrival of 5 4 6 0 15 0 13 2
Ambulance
999 triage 5 5 4 0 14 0 11 3
Misuse of Sirens 5 4 5 0 14 0 0 14
Navigation 1 2 2 0 5 0 1 4
Access to Health records 1 2 1 0 4 0 1 3
request
Problems with 0 2 1 0 3 0 2 1
transporting Patients
Vehicle issues 0 1 2 0 3 0 0 3
Eligibility Criteria 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1
Totals: 330 382 347 4 1124 1 334 789

Recording Complaints

Throughout the last year, the Trust has implemented an updated web based version of its risk
management software. This updated software has allowed the Trust and in particular the Making

| Page 30 of 39



Page 35

Experiences Count Team, review how complaints are recorded and reported within the Trust. The
impact will be realised year ending March 2014.

Furthermore following the recommendations from the Francis Report, the Trust will be recording all
concerns as complaints with effect from 1* April 2013 removing the need to record matters as PALS.
This will naturally lead to an overall increase in the number of complaints recorded with other
queries being lodged as general enquiries (previous recorded also as PALS).

Lessons learned

An essential aspect of the handling of complaints and PALS enquiries is to ensure that lessons are
learned to ensure that the same mistakes are not repeated. The Trust has well-developed
mechanisms to ensure that this happens from an individual level through the changes made to the
overall systems for how we respond to and care for patients. A detailed “4 C's” report covering
complaints, compliments, concerns and comments has been published covering these areas in
greater detail.

Four examples covering our main service areas are included to give an indication of the types of
improvements that have been introduced.

Emergency Control Centres:

e The importance of consistency in the EOC audit function has been highlighted through a
small number of incidents helping to provide evidence for the restructure of the audit
function.

PTS Control:

e Improvements have been made to the records within the PTS Control room system ensuring
accurate notes for all patient journeys, confirming the sequence of events for all patients.

PTS:

e Ensuring that only the appropriate patients travel with taxis and that taxi drivers ensure their
patients make it to their place of safety before completing the journey.

PES:

e Reminders and bulletins have been issued to staff regarding a number of issues including the
application of spinal immobilisation, the differential diagnosis for hyperventilation, the
importance of completing an appropriate dynamic risk assessment and completion of
detailed and accurate Patient Report Forms.

Compliment from patients:

PES

Patient contacted the Trust to thank both the control and attending staff. He was suffering from
chest pain and commented that not only was the operator on the phone was calm and reassuring but
also the attending paramedic were first class both in treatment but also providing reassurance to the

patient’s wife.

PTS

| Page 31 of 39



Page 36

A PTS patient contacted the Trust to express his thanks to the various crews who have attended him
over the last year.

This is managed through the Trust’s Incident Learning Forum

| Page 32 of 39



Page 37

3 Looking Forward to Improving Care

The Trust has agreed, in consultation with our stakeholders, four key quality improvement areas for
2013/14. These are identified as priorities within our Quality Strategy.

3.1 Safer Care Closer to Home (Falls)

This improvement area is extended into a further year and will include work on falls in our
care/manual handling of patients.

We will look to increase the number of referral options across each CCG area to achieve a greater
number of patients who can receive care safely, without attendance at the Emergency Department
or admission to hospital. This will enhance the patient experience throughout their journey of care.
We are looking to implement over 3000 additional care plans for patients with long term conditions,
increase referrals for fallers and diabetic patients by 20% by the end of the year, and further increase
the number of patients treated closer to home by 2% in year, resulting in an overall improvement in
the quality indicators to 26%.

We will take steps to promote and coordinate the integration of urgent care services, including

mental health services and social care, to ensure that our patients receive integrated seamless care
whenever possible.

3.2 Management of patient waiting times (long waits)

The Board has identified concerns regarding patients waiting long periods for an ambulance, either
where triage has been applied correctly and response is within accepted parameters but does not
meet public expectation, or where those parameters have not been met by the Trust

Management of Patient Waiting Times or “long waits” are reported through to the Medical Team, as
part of the SIREN report.

In almost all instances the resulting delay is as a result of upgrading of the incident from a lower
priority call. From 2013/14 there will be a proactive review of the long waits on a weekly basis by the
EOC.

3.3 Isolated Lower Limb Fracture

The Trust is implementing a new Clinical Performance Indicator to address this significant group of
patients. Performance will be benchmarked against other ambulance trusts in England

3.4 Improving care for patients with Mental Health issues

This will cover a range of initiatives, including the introduction of a new Mental Health Pathfinder, a
new CPI, and talking to service users.

| Page 33 of 39



Page 38

As part of the Trust’s Patient Experience Programme for 2012/13, a specific work stream was
undertaken to review our current mental health provision to service users. A review of the Trust’s
current state of service provision in relation to mental health protocols, training, service user
involvement, auditing for patients accessing the emergency service and including assessment,
treatment and transportation has taken place.

From that review a number of key areas have been identified with recommendations either already
in place or set for year two of the project, namely:

e A North West regional policy and guidance for conveying mental health patients, has been
developed in association with the police forces of the North West, this policy was introduced
in February and ensures a coordinated response is given from the ambulance service and the
police when dealing with mental health related calls. The policy shows a commitment from
NWAS to stakeholders in the timescales we are trying to achieve in responding to these calls
and also a commitment to the patients that they will be treated like a patient by using
ambulances to transport and not criminalised. This policy is a first for any ambulance service
in the country.

e A regional mental health care educational programme has been developed for all operational
Ambulance staff; identifying different aspects of mental health and the law, how to recognise
and deal with patients and how to assess capacity and looking at the role of partners and
stakeholders.

e Training packages are being developed utilising field experts ensuring that ambulance staff
can understand and recognise mental health issues, undertake assessments, and properly
assess risk and capacity in relation to the treatment, referral or transportation of said patient
group.

e Relevant stakeholders and partnerships have been, and continue to be developed across all
areas of the region, including Mental Health trusts, local government teams, police forces
and the fire services as well as voluntary and social organisations/groups/forums.

e Service user groups have been identified and contacted with regard to improving patient
experience. The Patient Experience Team received some invaluable feedback from the
groups, to further support Trust initiatives on mental health engagement.

e A review of Paramedic Pathfinder is to take place, to establish whether Mental Health
patient groups can be incorporated into the procedures to enable pathways to be introduced
where appropriate.

A significant amount of work has been undertaken to establish links with relevant stakeholders and
associated networks. NWAS has been able to increasing its service development requirements in
relation to; improved patient care, staff training, pathway development and collaborative working.

4 Formal Statements on Quality

The Trust is required to make the following formal statements within its Quality Account. It should
be noted that some of the statements relate to hospitals and are not relevant for ambulance trusts.

4.1 Review of services

The Trust has reviewed all the data available on the quality of care in the services provided by us in
2012/13. The income generated by the NHS services reviewed in 2012/13 represents 100 per cent of
the total income generated from the provision of NHS services by the Trust for the year.

| Page 34 of 39



Page 39

4.2 Participation in clinical audits

During 2012/13, NWAS NHS Trust participated fully in all of the national clinical audits it was eligible
to participate in.

The Trust participated in the following national clinical audits:

o Suffered a pre-hospital cardiac arrest
o Suffered a pre-hospital heart attack
o Suffered a Stroke

4.3 Participation in clinical research

TARN: (Trauma Audit and Research Network) a national audit of the care of patients
suffering acute trauma

NWAS NHS Trust approved and participated in 4 research studies during 2012/13.

National Ambulance Clinical Quality Performance Indicators, a national audit of the care of
patient who:

NRAD: Management of asthma patients that have died to determine preventable causes for
future patients

MINAP (Myocardial Ischaemia National Audit Project) a national audit of the care of patients
suffering a heart attack.

NHS Portfolio Studies
UKCRN Topic Study Type Study Title University/ Closure
ID N¢ Institution Date
10072 Injuries & Interventional | Head Injury Transportation University of 31/03/13
Emergencies Straight to Neurosurgery Trial — Manchester
HITS-NS
13566 Injuries & Observational | PhOEBE University of 31/05/15
Emergencies Developing New Ways of Sheffield
Measuring the Impact of
Ambulance Service Care
12553 Generic Observational | Identification of emergency and University of 31/05/14
Relevance & urgent care system Sheffield
Cross Cutting characteristics affecting
Themes (co- preventable emergency
adopted by admission rates
Primary Care)
11917 Stroke Observational | A study of major system University College 20/12/13
reconfiguration in stroke services | London

The recruitment phase to the Head Injury Transportation Straight to Neurosurgery Trial by NWAS
NHS Trust is now complete and the recruitment to the trial by NWAS NHS Trust is in the process of
being finalised.

4.4 Use of the CQUIN payment framework

A proportion of NWAS NHS Trust income in 2012/13 was conditional on achieving quality
improvement and innovation goals agreed between NWAS NHS Trust and any person or body they
entered into a contract, agreement or arrangement with for the provision of NHS services, through
the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation payment framework (CQUIN). The seven schemes are

| Page 35 of 39



Page 40

listed below. They were supported with funding from commissioners and allowed the Trust commit
time and investment into a number of crucial areas. All seven schemes were completed successfully.

e Community Care Pathway

e Chain of Survival (Complementary Resources)
e C(linical Quality Indicators

e Acute Myocardial Infarction

e Greater Manchester Cat 'A' Performance

e PTS Quality of Service

e Patient Experience

Progress against an agreed set of implementation and payment milestones for each scheme was
monitoring via the Finance and Contracting Group, and more recently via the Commissioning Quality
Group.

Payments were approved by the Finance and Contracting Group.

All schemes achieved all their implementation and payment milestones, including the production of a
final evaluation report), with the exception of schemes 5 and 6 as a consequence it was agreed that
the commissioners would withhold £113k.

4.5 Statement on relevance of Data Quality and your actions to improve it

4.5.1 NHS Number and General Medical Practice Code Validity

NWAS NHS Trust did not submit records during 2012/13 to the Secondary Uses service for inclusion
in the Hospital Episode Statistics. This requirement does not apply to ambulance trusts.

4.5.2 Information Governance Toolkit attainment levels

NWAS NHS Trust Information Governance Assessment Report score overall score for 2012/13 was
78%. The Trust achieved Level 2 compliance or above in all elements of the toolkit.

4.5.3 Clinical coding error rate

NWAS NHS Trust was not subject to the Payment by Results clinical coding audit during 2012/13 by
the Audit Commission

| Page 36 of 39



Page 41

5 Statements from commissioning PCT, LINk and OSC

5.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committees

5.2 Local Improvement Networks

5.3 NHS Blackpool - NWAS Commissioners statement

| Page 37 of 39



Page 42

Appendix 1: Glossary of Terms

Advanced Paramedics

More highly qualified paramedic staff who also provide clinical leadership
and support to their colleagues

Cardiac arrest

A medical condition wherein the heart stops beating effectively,
requiring CPR and sometimes requiring defibrillation

Care Bundle

A set of actions expected of ambulance staff in specific clinical
circumstances. The completeness of the response is measured as a
Clinical Performance Indicator (CPI)

Chain of Survival

The process to ensure the optimum care and treatment of cardiac arrest
and heart attack patients at every stage of the pathway

Community First

A member of the public who volunteers to provide an immediate

Responder (CFR) response and first aid to patients requesting ambulance assistance

Complementary Non ambulance trust providers of potentially life-saving care, e.g. CFRs St

Resources John Ambulance, Red Cross, Mountain Rescue, Air Ambulance

CPR Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation

cQcC Care Quality Commission - The independent regulator of all health and
social care services in England. Their job is to make sure that care
provided by hospitals, dentists, ambulances, care homes and services in
people’s own homes and elsewhere meets government standards of
quality and safety

CTB Call to Balloon — the time taken form receipt of the 999 call to the
administration of PPCI

CTD Call to Door - the time taken form receipt of the 999 call to the arrival at
a definitive care department such as a Stoke Unit

CTN Call to needle — the time taken form receipt of the 999 call to the

administration of thrombolytic clot busting drugs

Defibrillator (also AED)

Medical equipment to provide an electric shock to a patient’s heart
which is not functioning properly

FAST

A simple test for the presence of a stroke — Face, Arms, Speech, Time

Myocardial infarction
(MI) or Heart attack

A medical condition wherein the coronary arteries of the heart are
blocked leading to (acute pain and) an immediate risk to life

NHSLA

NHS Litigation Authority

NWAS North West Ambulance Service NHS Trust
PALS Patient Advice and Liaison Service
Paramedic A state registered ambulance healthcare professional

Paramedic Emergency
Service (PES)

999 Emergency ambulance service

Paramedic Pathfinder

NWAS Initiative to enable Paramedics and Advanced Paramedics to make
considered clinical judgments about the next care pathway to be used for
an individual patient’s needs

Patient
Service (PTS)

Transport

Non-emergency transport service that provides hospital transfers,
discharges and outpatients appointments for those patients unable to
make their own arrangements.

PPCI Primary Percutaneous Coronary Intervention — treatment of a MI
through immediate surgical intervention

STEMI ST Elevation Myocardial Infarction — A life threatening Heart Attack

Stroke Blockage or bleeding of the blood vessels in the brain that can lead to

death or disability.

Thrombolysis

Medical treatment to break up blood clots in the case of Ml or Stroke.

Utstein

Cardiac arrest and CPR outcome reporting process

| Page 38 of 39




Page 43

If you have any questions or concerns following reading this report please do
not hesitate to contact the Trust.

We can be contacted at:

North West Ambulance Service NHS Trust
Trust Headquarters

Ladybridge Hall

Chorley New Rd

Bolton

Lancs

BL15DD

For general enquiries please use:

Telephone: 01204 498400
E-mail: nwasenquiries@nwas.nhs.uk

For enquiries specific to the Quality Account, please contact Tim Butcher,
Assistant Director for Performance Improvement on:

Telephone: 01204 498434
E-mail: tim.butcher@nwas.nhs.uk

Should you wish to access any of the Trust publications mentioned in this
Quality Account they can be accessed on the Trust website at
WwWw.nwas.nhs.uk.

| Page 39 of 39



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 45 Agenda ltem 7

well/

Ageing Well in Cheshire East
A programme for people aged 50 and over
2012 - 2017

Annual Report
2012 -13

Ageing Well in Cheshire East Page 10of 9
Annual Report 2012-13



Page 46

1. Overview of the Programme

The ageing population of Cheshire East represent an enormous resource in terms of talent, experience
and knowledge. “Ageing Well in Cheshire East” is seeking to make the borough a good place to grow old
by maximising the opportunities for the ageing population to prepare for the later stages of life,
maintain their quality of life during later life and have access to person centred services when required.

The Programme is founded on the principle that we wish to enable our ageing population;

e To have a strong voice in influencing local policy and services

e To take and maintain responsibility for their lives

e Toremain healthy and active

e To retain their independence

e To ensure access to services

e To benefit from and contribute through employment, volunteering and learning
e To live in a safe environment that maintains links with family and friends

e To maintain their roles as partners, carers, grandparents, employees, etc.

If the programme is successful then Cheshire East will see a fundamental cultural and organisational
shift, so that, over time,

e Older people will have more choice and control, can receive the help they need and are valued
and respected within their communities

e Public, private and voluntary sectors will work together with communities in a seamless way to
ensure services, facilities and resources meet demand and are accessible

e Services and support will be locally based, cost-effective and sustainable

Ageing Well in Cheshire East was launched early in 2012 and is based on seven work streams which
reflect the issues that older people told us were most important to them:

e Care and Support

e Communication and Engagement

e Community Safety

e Healthy Ageing, Culture and Learning
e Housing

e Income and Employment

e Transport

Throughout the development of the programme we have consulted with older people. Local residents
remain involved in our activities, with representatives from the Fifty Plus Network and Cheshire East
Local Involvement Network (LINks) on each of our work stream groups, steering group and Programme
Board. We look forward to working with Cheshire East Healthwatch as it takes over from LINks in the
coming year

The Ageing Well Programme reports to the Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board. The Programme
supports the delivery of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy as follows:

Ageing Well in Cheshire East Page 2 of 9
Annual Report 2012-13



Page 47

Health and Wellbeing Strategy Priority Outcome - Older People
Targets for this outcome
Work Stream Support older Reduce the Provide good Support older
Improve Care . - .
people to live number of palliative care people with
for Older . .
People independently older people for people at end of life
P for longer_ that have falls the end of life planning
Care and Support v v v v
Community Safety v
Healthy Ageing Culture and v v
Learning
Housing v v v
v v
v

Further information about the Ageing Well in Cheshire East Programme - A plan for people aged 50
and over - 2012 - 2017 can be found at:

www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ageingwell

Ageing Well in Cheshire East

Page 3 0of 9
Annual Report 2012-13




Page 48

2. Delivery of Work Streams

The seven work streams are the foundation of the Programme and are where the work happens. Each
one works differently, reflecting the people and organisations involved. The work is recorded in a
detailed set of action plans, which include outcomes and where appropriate measurements. Below are
some of the highlights from 2012/13:

e 160 hits for our online video capturing the experiences of Older People in Cheshire East
(Communication and Engagement work stream)

e Events celebrating International Older People’s Day including the Cheshire Hidden Talent Show
(Communication and Engagement work stream)

e 266 people attended Be Steady, Be Safe exercise classes to help reduce their risk of falls (Healthy
Ageing work stream)

e 350 people trained as InfolLink Champions and accreditation of the InfolLink scheme. Infolink is a
centralised directory of services in Central and Eastern Cheshire that can help support health and
wellbeing. For further information, visit www.infolinkcheshire.nhs.uk (Healthy Ageing work
stream)

e Almost 50% of all learners engaged on adult learning programmes delivered by Cheshire East
Lifelong Learning service are over 50 years of age (2011-12) (Learning work stream)

e Regular Rural Touring Arts events are held at Oakmere Avantage Extra Care Housing (Culture
work stream)

e Arts and dementia activities rolled out across the borough (Culture work stream)

e Nantwich Museum and Bridgend Heritage Centre currently developing memory box resources
and service for dementia sufferers (Culture work stream)

e Progress on the enhanced housing options which will enable better access to information for
specialist housing options (Housing work stream)

e Delivery of the winter warmth campaign (Housing work stream)

e Delivery of the house of Hazards campaign to raise awareness of home safety issues and prevent
falls (Healthy Ageing work stream)

e Work with Plus Dane Housing to develop a quick referral tool with five key questions for use with
tenants (Housing work stream)

e Poynton Local Area Partnership are developing a list of reliable tradespeople to whom people
can be signposted (Local Area Partnerships)

e Establishing the Income and Employment work stream from the many diverse areas involved in
promoting income, employment and preparing for later life, but who had previously not worked
together (Income and Employment work stream)

e Promoting the use of the Hot Spots scheme which allows people to ask for benefits review via a
simple card left in their home by a front line worker (Income and Employment work stream)

e Sharing knowledge on dignity and local action taking place to ensure services are planned and
provided to maintain dignity (Care and Support work stream)

e Increasing understanding of assistive technology and identifying areas where its use can be
promoted (Care and Support work stream)

Ageing Well in Cheshire East Page 4 of 9
Annual Report 2012-13



Page 49
3. Highlights of 2012 - 13

In addition to the work streams the Ageing Well Programme has led a number of programme wide
events and initiatives. These include:

3.1 Launch Event
Ageing Well in Cheshire East was formally launched in January 2012 at Legends Social Club in Crewe by
the Chief Executive of Cheshire East Council.

The programme included talks by local older people from the Fifty Plus Network, who shared their own
experiences of ageing with great enthusiasm, energy and passion and a more formal presentations
about the National Ageing Well Programme by the Director for Ageing Society and State Pensions from
the Department of Work and Pensions.

The event was very well attended with representatives from over 40 different organisations. Delegates
also took the opportunity to meet the work stream leads and to browse a range of market place stands.

3.2 Programme Board

As part of the governance arrangements for the Programme, we have established a Board for the Ageing
Well Programme. We received support from the national Ageing Well Programme team to recruit our
Board Members from a wide range of organisations and have a membership whose different
backgrounds and knowledge of different sectors is a real asset to the Programme.

A diagram showing all of our board members is shown on page 9.

3.3 Learning Event with Warrington

To mark the end of the support from the national Ageing Well Programme, Cheshire East hosted a
learning exchange event with Warrington. The event enabled over 50 people from the two areas to
share their learning and look at how the work could be sustained in the future. The event also included
presentations and workshops on issues that needed further consideration in future years.

Brian Keating, from the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP), described the national picture and
guest speakers from London and Manchester provided thought provoking information and examples of
tackling social isolation and alcohol screening and prevention. Those present had a chance to debate
these topics and develop local action plans to feed into the respective local ageing well programme.

3.4 Embracing the Older Generation
This event in October 2012 was the faith communities response to the Cheshire East Ageing Well

Programme — it began as an idea to gather together a few people from churches and faith groups who
work and volunteer with older people to share ideas, stories and experience but rapidly grew into a one
day conference where people were able to encourage one another and increase understanding of the
challenge of meeting the needs of the growing number of older people in Cheshire East.

Groups explored a range of themes including

e Living with loss & bereavement support
e The Cheshire Living Well Dying Well Programme

Ageing Well in Cheshire East Page 50f 9
Annual Report 2012-13



Page 50

e Spirituality in older age

e Men ageing

e Improving spiritual and pastoral support in residential care.
e What people said:

Feedback was overwhelmingly positive and a range of potential projects were identified, including

. Setting up and training groups to offer friendship and support to those experiencing loss and
bereavement

° Using church buildings and events as hubs for information, advice and support

. Addressing the specific concerns of men as they age and face significant transitions in life

3.5 Health and Wellbeing Fayre

Crewe and Nantwich Senior Forum and Crewe Local Area Partnership worked together to stage a Health
and Wellbeing Fayre with the aim to provide an innovative method of engaging the wider community on
the hot topic of Ageing Well in Crewe.

The event provided a one stop shop for people to access valuable health information and also acted as
an opportunity for service providers who are tackling healthy ageing an opportunity to meet service
users.

Over 300 older people attended the event and left better informed about what is happening in their
area. Crewe LAP informed people about the priorities for the Crewe Area Plan 2013, and consulted on
health issues affecting the ageing population.

3.6 Working Together on the Moss

The Moss Rose Estate is situated about a mile away from Macclesfield town centre and is home to
approximately 6,000 people. A fifth of the population living on the Moss Rose Estate are pensioners and
more than a third of this group are aged over 80.

Statistics demonstrate high levels of deprivation compared to other areas of Macclesfield within close
proximity, highlighting the contrast of a ‘pocket of disadvantage’ surrounded by an area of some
affluence, a fact which reinforces the strong sense of community on the Estate.

Working Together on the Moss was established as a community budgeting pilot for Cheshire East, with a
Steering Group established in February 2011.

Following consultation with local residents, a range of activities has taken place to improve the quality
of life for older people including the provision of a central, accessible and safe meeting place for social
activities and regular lunch clubs. Plans are now being developed to improve older people’s access to
information technology both at home and in community venues.

The Ageing Well programme team worked to adapt the national self-assessment tool developed for use
with strategic partnerships for use with local communities and tested this out with a group of older
people and agencies on the Moss Rose Estate.

Ageing Well in Cheshire East Page 6 of 9
Annual Report 2012-13



Page 51

Following this engagement and consultation with local residents, a range of activities have taken place
to improve the quality of life for older people including the provision of a central, accessible and safe
meeting place for social activities and regular lunch clubs. Plans are now being developed to improve
older people’s access to information technology both at home and in community venues and promote
the local pharmacy services, e.g. minor ailments and medication reviews.

4, Cheshire Living Well, Dying Well Partnership

The Cheshire Living Well, Dying Well Partnership aims to
improve health and wellbeing by normalising death and dying in
society, breaking down taboos and supporting a change in
public knowledge, attitude and behaviour so that people
consider, discuss and plan for end of life throughout their lives.

Cheshire
Living Well | Dying We
Partnership

The Partnership is supported by St. Luke's (Cheshire) Hospice, Macmillan Cancer Support and the local
Public Health Teams.

The highlights for 2012 - 13 were as follows:

e Making a presentation to the All Party Parliamentary Group on the Living Well, Dying Well
Partnership at the House of Lords. This was an opportunity to highlight the innovative nature of
the work being done in Cheshire and the unique way in which it is funded

e Launching CLWDW at an event which included a keynote address from Fiona Bruce MP

e Developing of a range of support and training sessions for the community and wider public
health workforce

5. Plans for Year 2 (2013 - 14)

5.1 Delivery of work streams

We will continue to deliver the programme through our work streams who will deliver the Programme
objectives over the next 4 years. A programme action plan captures the full detail of the work plans and
can be made available. Below is a sample of the plans:

e Continue to develop schemes such as Street Safe and Nominated Neighbours that promote
social inclusion and support older people to feel safe within their communities

e Development of a Falls Awareness E-Learning training programme for key front line staff

e Support museums and heritage venues to develop and deliver dementia friendly services

e Development of cultural programmes and activities in partnership with other agencies and
partners, to meet the needs of vulnerable older people contributing to their physical and mental
health and wellbeing

e Tackle fuel poverty and improve the energy efficiency and condition of older people’s homes

e Improve access to suitable housing for people with disabilities and care needs

e Develop and implement a new Community Transport Grants scheme that supports local
transport initiatives

5.2 Focus on social Isolation
Social isolation is a recurring theme and one that cuts across all of our work streams. We will take a
Programme wide approach and work with other partners to review how we can link up what is already

Ageing Well in Cheshire East Page 7 of 9
Annual Report 2012-13



Page 52

in place in communities and consider what additional action is required to reduce the impact of
loneliness on local people.

We are planning to work with the Department of Work and Pensions Ageing Society Team (DWP) to
progress ageing well with local Parish and Town Councils and Local Area Partnerships, which will include
actions to strengthen community cohesion and reduce loneliness.

5.3 Links to other Programmes of Work

Although Ageing Well in Cheshire East is a broad ranging Programme there are a number of issues that
fall outside our remit as they are already part of existing programmes of work. These issues include
Dementia, Carers, Safeguarding of vulnerable adults and End of Life Care. In year 2 we will formalise our
links with these other programmes to ensure that there are no gaps and to encourage closer working
between different programmes where this will deliver better outcomes for older people.

5.4 Good Retirement Show

Feedback from older people and from our work stream membership tells us that people do not always
feel well prepared for their later life. We are proposing to hold an event for members of the public (of
all ages) to come and find out more about what to expect from retirement, how people can plan in
order to “Age Well” and what help is available to support people in making decisions for their later life.

5.5 3 Million Lives (3ML)

Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group and Cheshire East Council have been successful in being
selected as a pathfinder site for the "3 Million Lives" initiative to deliver the challenge of providing
10,000 people with long term health conditions with new technologies to improve their health.

5.6 Anticipated challenges — Spreading the Ageing Well programme across Cheshire East

The economic downturn will continue in year 2 of the Programme and we will continue to work with
very limited resources. In fact we are recognised by the DWP as being outstanding in what we have
managed to achieve with no dedicated budget. As we know, Ageing Well in Cheshire East relies primarily
on people making a difference through their “day jobs”. It is the intention to continue to spread the
work of the programme across greater numbers of people and organisations, thereby enabling the
programme to continue to progress through many people making small actions/changes that contribute
in a big way to making Cheshire East a better place to grow old.

Acknowledgements

The Ageing Well Programme Team would like to extend an enormous thank you to everyone who has
been involved in any way in assisting in the delivery of Year 1 of the programme. It would not have been
possible without your passion, commitment and time. We hope that you will continue to work with us
during Year 2 as we all strive to make Cheshire East a “good place to grow old”.

Bernadette Bailey
Programme Lead

Ageing Well in Cheshire East Page 8 of 9
Annual Report 2012-13



The Ageing Well Programme Board

Organisation

Work stream/Project

Organisation

Work stream/Project

Madelyn
Bridge

Bill Brookes

Clir David
Brown

Clir Janet
Clowes

Mike Doran
(Chair)

Jacquie
Grinham

Clir Olivia
Hunter

Carolyn
McQuaker

Age UK Cheshire East

Cheshire East LINk

Cheshire East Council

Cheshire East Council

Plus Dane Housing

Cheshire East Congress

Cheshire East Council

Go Project and the faith
sector

Ageing Well in Cheshire East

Annual Report 2012-13

3 Million Lives

Care and Support work
stream

Parish Councils

Income and Employment
work stream

Transport work stream

Good Retirement Show

Communications and
Engagement work stream

¢A

>
e

Page 9 of 9

Evan Morris

Dr Sabu Oomman

Davina Parr

Lucia Scally

David Scott (Deputy
Chair)

Kath Senior

Lawrence Tudin

Jacki Wilkes

Cheshire  Fire and

Rescue Service

Cheshire and Wirral
Partnership NHSFT

Cheshire East Council

Cheshire East Council

Fifty Plus Network

East Cheshire NHS
Trust

SAS Daniels

NHS Eastern Cheshire
CCG

3 Million Lives

Cheshire East
Dementia Strategy

Cheshire East
Dementia Strategy

Transport work stream TJ

oG obe

Care and support work
stream

Healthy Ageing,
Culture and Learning
work stream

Housing work stream

Cheshire East
Dementia Strategy



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55 Agenda Item 8

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
REPORT TO: Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting: 13 June 2013
Report of: Head of Governance and Democratic Services
Subject/Title: Work Programme update

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 Toreview items in the 2013/14 Work Programme, to consider the efficacy of
existing items listed in the schedule attached, together with any other items
suggested by Committee Members.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 That the work programme be received and noted.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 It is good practice to agree and review the Work Programme to enable effective
management of the Committee’s business.

4.0 Wards Affected

41 Al

5.0 Local Ward Members

5.1 Not applicable.

6.0 Policy Implications

6.1 Not known at this stage.

7.0 Financial Implications for Transition Costs
7.1 None identified at the moment.

8.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)
8.1 None.

9.0 Risk Management

91 There are no identifiable risks.



10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

11.0

Name:

Page 56

Background and Options

In reviewing the work programme, Members must pay close attention to the
Corporate Plan and Sustainable Communities Strategy.

The schedule attached, has been updated in line with the Committees
recommendations on 9 May 2013. Following this meeting the document will be
updated so that all the appropriate targets will be included within the schedule.
In reviewing the work programme, Members must have regard to the general
criteria which should be applied to all potential items, including Task and Finish
reviews, when considering whether any Scrutiny activity is appropriate. Matters
should be assessed against the following criteria:

e Does the issue fall within a corporate priority

e Is the issue of key interest to the public

e Does the matter relate to a poor or declining performing
service for which there is no obvious explanation

e |s there a pattern of budgetary overspends

e [s it a matter raised by external audit management
letters and or audit reports?

e Is there a high level of dissatisfaction with the service

If during the assessment process any of the following emerge, then
the topic should be rejected:

The topic is already being addressed elsewhere
The matter is subjudice

Scrutiny cannot add value or is unlikely to be able to conclude an
investigation within the specified timescale

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting
the report writer:

James Morley

Designation: Scrutiny Officer

Tel No
Email:

; 01270 686468
james.morley@cheshireeast.gov.uk



HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME

Last Updated — 5 June 2013

Issue Description/ Suggested | Portfolio
Comments by Holder
Health and Wellbeing Development of Standard Health and
Board (HWBB) new arrangements | ltem Adult
Ageing Well To receive a one Chairman Health and
Programme year update on the Adults
performance of the
programme
Quality Accounts: To examine the Chairman Health and
NWAS Quality Accounts of Adults
North West
Ambulance Service
Quality Accounts NHS Providers Committee | Health and
publish Quality Adults
Accounts on a
yearly basis and
are required to give
Scrutiny the
opportunity to
comment.
Scrutiny Protocol with To approve the Scrutiny Health and
CCGs proposed protocol | Team Adults

Current position

Next Key Date

5 June 2013
agenda deadline
13 June 2013
meeting.

5 June 2013
agenda deadline
13 June 2013
meeting

5 June 2013
agenda deadline
13 June 2013
meeting

Potential items
for future
meeting. July —
September 2013

Final approval of
protocol to be
confirmed

/G obed



HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME

Last Updated — 5 June 2013

Annual Public Health
Report

To receive a
presentation on the
Annual Public
Health report and
assess whether any
issues should be a
focus for Scrutiny

Committee

Health and
Adults

Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy

To monitor,
scrutinise or
contribute to the
JHWS

Committee

Health and
Adults

Deferred until
TBC

NHS Health Checks

Centre for Public
Scrutiny are
offering support to
5 local authorities
to conduct a review
of NHS Health
Checks.

Scrutiny
Team

Health and
Adults

On-going

TBC

New 111 call system

To inform members
of the new call
system.

Committee

Health and
Adult

Information to be
provided when
available

Mental Health Scrutiny

Need to establish
how scrutiny of
CWP and mental
health services will
take place

Chairman

Health and
Adults

TBC

NWAS Communities
Strategy Performance

To examine and
offer comments on
NWAS performance

Committee

Health and
Adults

TBC

gG abed



HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME

Safeguarding Peer
Review

Chairman to liaise
with Corporate
Scrutiny Chairman
regarding future
monitoring of item.

Corporate
Scrutiny
Committee

Health and
Adults
/Children
and
Families

Last Updated — 5 June 2013

Unknown

6G obed



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous meeting
	6 North West Ambulance Service Quality Accounts 2012/13
	7 Ageing Well Programme Annual Report
	8 Work Programme
	New work programme 5 June 13


